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£ Our brand names - Avery, Fasson and Avery Dennison — consistently deliver
* value to our customers around the world. In retail markets, consumers look for
the Avery brand for innovative office and consumer products. In industrial markets,
customers specify Fasson for quality labeling materials, and Avery Dennison for
unique labeling solutions, like battery tester labels. In the global marketplace,
our brands give us the competitive edge.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 1996

* Avery Dennison recorded its sixth consecutive year of improved profitability ¢
* Reported record sales, net income and earnings per share ¢
* Return on equity {ncreased to 21.4 percent ¢
« Return on total capital'increased to 16.4 percent *

» Dividends increased for the 21st consecutive year

* Net income increased 22 percent to $175.9 million «

§: » Sales grew 6.4 percent, excluding;g_hvgnges in currencies and a prior year divestiture
ey

ings pg,;wghaﬁéﬁi?ié\reas‘ia24 percent to $1.68 per share ¢
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Avery Dennison proprietary pressure-sensitive technalogy for battery tester label applications
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A MESSAGE FROM CHUCK MILLER

Charles D. Miller
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer *

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

By every measure, 1996 was an outstanding year. Avery Dennison achieved
record sales, net income and earnings per share. This was the sixch consecu-
tive year of improved financial resules and increased shareholder valuc. To
top it off, Avery Dennison stock rose 43 percent in 1996, culminating in a
2-for-1 stock split in December. All in all, a terrific year.

* Earnings per share increased 24.4 percent to $1.68 per share. !

* Nert income rose 22.4 percent to $175.9 million.

* Sales grew 6.4 percent to $3.2 billion, excluding currency changes r
and a prior-year divestiture. Reported sales increased 3.5 percent. '

We mer our long-range targets for earnings per share and return on
total capiral. Key ratios and operating measurements also improved over
last year, establishing several new benchmarks for the Company:

* Rerturn on shareholders’ equity increased to a 30-year high of 21.4 percent. i
Recurn on total capital increased to 16.4 percent from 14.4 percent in i
1995. We are earning well above our cost of capital.
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The quarterly dividend was increased 13.3 percent — for our twenty-firsc
consecutive year of dividend increases.

¢ Excellent cash flow during the year enabled the Company to repurchase 3.8
million shares of Avery Dennison stock for a total cost of $109.3 million,

while mainraining a total debe to total capital racio of 35.9 percent.

s Capital spending o support worldwide growth reached $188 million, with
approximately $190 to $200 million in new spending planned for 1997.

» We achieved average working capital, as a percent of sales, of 9.1 percent.

Our strategies are working. We are creating gen-
TWENTY-ONE CONSECUTIVE uine shareholder value. Over the past three years, our

YEARS OF INCREASING shareholders have earned a 37.6 percent annualized
DIVIDENDS return on their investment including stock price

f

appreciation and total dividends. Avery Dennison’s b
stock price has increased by 141 percent — clearly
outpacing the 59 percent growth of the S&P 500
Index during the same three-year period. Our total

return on shareholders’ equity reached a record high

{Dividends per commeon share)

570 of 21.4 percent in 1996 and, at year end, our roral ¢

market value stood at $3.7 billion, an increase of
$2.1 billion over che last three years. ]
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CLEAR VISION. DISCIPLINED
MANAGEMENT. SOLID CORE
BUSINESSES. GREAT PRODUCTS.
We have a consistent and clear vision. We create

AR

innovative products with high growth potential in

¥
I

expanding economies and in any market. We have

advanced technology which is largely proprietary, to

S0 a7 77 70 9 S0 2t 5 50 87 635950 o1 92 93.74 95 % support our core businesses. And we have invested
4 more than four decades in two powerful brand

names — Avery and Fasson — that are recognized and respected in consumer
and industrial markets worldwide. Our two operating sectors, pressure-sensi-
tive adhesives and materials, and consumer and converted products, provide
the solid structure for sustained and vigorous growth.

Our exceptionally strong financial position is the result of a disci-
plined approach to financial management. We work relentlessly to improve
our margins, keep our debt to total capital in the 35 to 40 percent range,
hold working capital as a percent of sales at 9 to 11 percent, buy back stock
with cash flow and increase our dividends each year.

We achieved both our short- and long-term growth targees in 1996.
The benefits of a strong financial foundation, critical mass, market presence
and technical capability now enable the Company to atrain greater heights

even faster than before.




A Mesvage from Chuck Miller

We serve a broad spectrum of consumer and industrial markecs all
over the world, from graphics and packaging, to variable imprinting, to
automotive, to home and office products. Our producrs fir the changing
needs of both advanced and developing economies. Qur major brands are
attached to products that are consumed and used up every day. We are che

number one or number two manufacturer in the major markets we serve. If
we aren't, we gec our.

WHY S5O MANY SELF-ADHESIVE LABELS
IN THE WORLD:>:

The external forces that are changing our lives in every way are the same
unrefenting forces thar drive the demand for self-adhesive produces and

continue to shape our strategies for global growth,

AVERY DENNISON

STOCK PRICE Demand for more informative labels. As
779“?£_e_r_r_1_gjir 1 92_—_Q_ecember 19964

r 19 consumers demand and ger more informarion on

Avery Deanison's stock price has increased products, packaging labels become critical sales

by 141 percent, oucpacing the 59 percent and communication devices. Not only must che

cumulative growch of the $+P 500 Index . . ,
duting the same period. label describe, among ocher things, a product’s

conreats, ingredients, instructions and ocher
e _ atcributes, it muse induce che consumer to pur-
chase. That's a lot of work for “just a label.”
Innovative, atcractive and inviting product labels
and precision printing demand advanced pressure- :

335

330 C . . ) i
sensitive materials — and continue ro deive Avery £
525 Dennison’s growch and technology.
20
- Expanded use of personal computers. As the
$15 . . ' ' : : . : - .
o P worldwide market for personal computers concinues
Tl ‘ £ soar, opportunities multiply for creative and func- )
= ' . : tional labels co be fed through laser and ink-jet

printers. Our penetration of this marker is sill quite

0 Dee Ao e T s, ) low —and that’s the good news — giving us almost
unlimited opportunity to extend the power of our
Avery brand, the most recognized brand in the world for self-adhesive prod-
ucts for the office and home. We are [imiced only by our ability to do ic well.
We intend to maintain our market and brand-name leadership wich a
stream of new, clever and functional products. Once introduced to our prod-
ucts, consumers in North America, Latin America, Europe and Asia love chem.,
These products are easy to use and satisfy real office and consumer needs. And, '
thanks to the alliances we have with leading compauies like Microsoft,
Hewlett-Packard, and now Martel, for our new Avery Kids children’s line, our

consumers get a firse-class introducrion to our Avery-brand products.

£ ap R

Bar-coded variable information. We have ralked before abour the prolif-
eration of bar codes. We love bar codes because they are printed mainly on
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pressure-sensitive labels. Our specialty coated products are designed to work
with high-speed printers and scanning devices that must flawlessly read and
record those ubiquitous verrical black lines. There is no end in sight for
bar-code demand, and we will continue to provide the best products to
meet this demand — parcicularly as bar codes go global.

Industrial growth and innovation. We see virtually unlimiced applications
for self-adhesive products in business and industry. Witness the positive experi-
ence consumers report with self-adhesive postage stamps and self-adhesive on-
battery labels. While the first fundamental change in postage stamps ook
nearly 200 years, it demonstrates the advantages self-adhesive products offer to
improve the convenience of everyday products. We're delighted with the suc-

—— cess of self-adhesive stamps, which now account for
""ARKET CAPITALIZATION more than 60 percent of all U.S. postage stamps.
We have partnered with Duracell in developing

Avery Dennison’s market capitalization

increased aver $2 billion the PowerCheck power-testing on-batrery label,
from 1993 1996. . .

o *° which has won kudos from consumers in both the

United States and Europe. This proprietary electroni-

cally active label has taken Avery Dennison’s label-

converting technology to a higher level. The
PowerCheck line will further expand in 1997 to

{In millions of doliars) R . . >
<5000 include a broader range of Duracell batteries and will

>

be marketed throughout most parts of the world.

The deceptively simple concept of conventional

self-adhesive labels belies the complex technology
involved — much of it proprietary to Avery Dennison

— that makes self-adhesive postage stamps and power-
testing on-battery labels possible. As new technolo-
gies emerge, so do the demands for increasingly

sophisticated self-adhesive components that improve
and expand a product’s performance, ease of use and
consumer friendliness. Qur researchers relentlessly

6 push the edge of the self-adhesive technology enve-

s

Dec 31,1993 Deg 31,1994 Dec 311995

Bec.

lope to applications limited only by our imagination.

Rise of consumer spending in developing countries. Recognizing and
seizing growth opportunities in developing nations is certainly not a new

strategy for Avery Dennison. We have set the footprint to serve the nascent
consumer markets in Latin America, Asia and Eastern Europe, just as our
Company has grown with the post-war industrial and consumer expansion
in North America and Western Europe during the past five decades. The

difference today, however, is that we are leapfrogging over incremental tech-

Ty

nological developments of the past to serve new markets better and faster.

Vi g

We intend to leverage the leadership we have developed in major con-
sumer and industrial markets and build on our strengths as the self-adhe-
sive technology leader. It is our challenge to bring creacive initiatives to the

A

o




A Message frowm Chuvk Mifler

forces driving our Company's growth as we move forward into new markets
and continue our penetration of current ones.

EXPANDING OUR VISION.

Our vision evolves as new market opportunities become solid business reali-
ties. We recently expanded our vision: 76 be the global leader in self-adbesive
base materials. self-adbesive consumer and office products and specialized label s ys-
tems. The growing prominence of our consumer-relaced produces and the
expansion of our specialized label-converting capabilicies have prompeed us
ro expand our sights and ¢o fully recognize the strategic importance of chese
markers. Qur vision is focused in chose geographic markets and product
areas where our rechnological strengrhs and manufacturing capabilities can
sustain market leadership.

GROWTH OF ELECTRONIC
PRINTERS WORLDWIDE
1996-2000

Our recent investments to establish a strong
business base in Asia Pacific, Latin America and
Eastern Europe have taken hold. We have a way

yet to go to achieve the projected volume and
Spurred by the increased use of compurers in profic goals we established three years ago, but we
emerging countries, rhe growing base of eleccronic . ..
priaters worldwide will more than double over the are getting there faster chan Oflglﬂﬂ.Hy planned.
aext few years, assucing consumer demand for During 1996, we expanded our penetration in
desktop-printer and PC-relaced preducrs. . -
. many parts of the world. We acquired a majority

75 co nillions) interest in Avery Dennison Dover in Argentina,
the “southern cone” market leader in premium pres-
sure-sensitive materials. We expanded the capacity
of our materials business in Mexico. We purchased
land in Germany for the construction of whar will
be Avery Dennison’s largest film materials manufac-
turing facility to serve our cencral and eastern ,
European markets for pressure-sensitive film materi- :
als; start-up is scheduled for 1998, In Denmark, swe
are adding capacity in our label-converting business
to meet growing European demand for Duracell’s
PowerCheck battery. In Asia Pacific, we are already
: —— doubling the capacity in our two-year-old Shanghai
D materials manufaccuring facility, and we have escablished distribution centers

for pressure-sensitive materials in India, Thailand and Indonesia and com-

pleted our new and expanded Hong Kong manufacturing and distribution .
facilicy. '

e o

ar s e s

v g o

Our plans for global investment in 1997 are just as ambitious as we
further expand our foundation in these fast-growing and developing mar-
kets. We will build or expand our distriburion and manufacturing base for
pressure-sensitive materials in India, Thailand and China, as well as in
Eastern Europe and Latin America. Our strategy to invest only in our high-
recurn core businesses is working well and producing the desired resulrs.

In'a world that is increasingly complex, our vision is simple. It makes
sense, and it works.
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OCUR FOCUS: STRATEGIC, GLOBAL AND LONG-TERM.
A large measure of our success comes from understanding this business and
our markets. Most of our businesses are global businesses, and we manage
thern on that basis. We see growth opportunities where others may not. We
see the world in terms of where there can be more self-adhesive products. We
develop strategies with an experienced understanding of what works and what
doest’t. We move fast and with flexibility. We focus on what we know best.
We have always been a company that sees opportunities to grow — as
markets, packaging concepts or technologies change. The infinite variety of self-
adhesive products constancly creates new ways o make the next product better.
This is a true strategic capability and one that is intrinsic to our culrure.
Avery Dennison has recently reached a fundamentally higher level in
- leveraging its capabilities. Qur self-adhesive prod-

===

JROWTH OF PRESSURE- ucts are consistently successful in growing markets.
SENSITIVE MATERIALS FOR We operate from a common technology platform,
BAR-CODING AND OTHER within a common value system based on a culture
VARIABLE-IMAGING USES that encourages new ideas and new thinking. Most ;
~ {(TO YEAR 2000) importantly, our capabilities now match our imagi- ‘

pation. We can do whatever we dream of doing, and

Wichin the pressure-sensitive roll macerials

industry, anoual projected growth races for we do what we say.

variable-imaging macerials indicate rapidly
expanding applicacions.

Our focus on the principles of value-based man-
agement is working. We generated more than $50
million in economic value added in 1996, significantly
exceeding our value-creation target for the year. We
frame every decision within the context of whether we
create or destroy economic value, over time.

For the first time in nearly 50 years, every

Avery Dennison employee and operating umnit is
Laser/copier Materials Growth 15-17%

unified under 2 common corporate image il Support
of three powerful and leading brands, Avery, Fasson
and Avery Dennison. We intend to aggressively

support and build upon the common actribuses that

i Th | & h 14-17% . .
{ ormal Macenals Growth 14175 define our brands — quality, customer loyalty, posi-

tive image, market recognition and innovative pro-

1 % Labeling Consultancy

prietary advantages. These brands are among our most important assets.
We enter 1997 with strong operating momentum and a high level of con-
fidence in our ability to deliver another year of solid growth in sales and earnings.

Sincerely,

R0 30. il

Charles . Miller
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

March 1, 1997




Philip M. Neal
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Our global operations petformed exceptionally well in 1996, demonstrating
the soundness of our managemenc strategies, as well as our ability to
respond quickly and decisively to changing market conditions.

We advanced boldly on many fronts — asserting our pressure-sensitive
marterials leadership with aggressive investments in capital and in labeling
technology and by implementing a winning global stracegy co build world-
wide demand for our innovative Avery-brand office automarion products.

Global expansion — significant to our growth strategy — continued ro
be a major driving force behind our operaring decisions. Qur top-petform-
ing products and services, with well-established customers in North
America and Europe, continued to build on chis success abroad, findiag a
new base of customers in the rapidly growing markets of Latin America,
Asia Pacific and Eastern Europe. Brand strength is an undeniably powerful
competitive force in our global growth straregy.

PRESSURE-SENSITIVE ADHESIVES

AND MATERTIALS

Our pressure-sensitive adhesives and materials sector reported improved
sales and profirability in 1996 in both our U.S. and international opera-
tions. Successful new products and service initiatives in core markers,
combined with aggressive capital investments in new geographic markets,

advanced our leadership position worldwide.




. oper-"' Review Y
, Our unique EXACT * Qur industry-first, proprietary Fasson-brand '
progra™ has defined a EXACT service program, which allows cus-
higher industry standard tomers to order materials in exactly the
for service, allowing roll widths they need, rather than in fixed sizes,
material customers to is a hit with customers, prompting us to
order 2 precise roll expand EXACT chroughout North America
wict 2y need, elimi- and to distribution centers in Europe, as well
nating excess stock, as to extend chis service to additional product lines.

» Customer-driven demand for railor-made services and products also inspired
the creation of a fast-turnaround, custom-product operation in California to
serve the western region for custom-coated products.

» We expanded our films-coating capacity in North America to support the
strong global growth of our premium Fasson-brand FasClear and PRIMAX
film label products for consumer packaging.

e We invested in manufacturing capacity for a proprietary new hot-melt
adhesive that promises to redefine adhesive performance for consumer pack-
age labeling. In addition, the proven success of our new Fasson-brand liner
for bar-coded labels provides encree to a whole new liner system to be
launched in early 1997.

* To support market growth of our roll label material for variable-imprinting
applications, we made process enhancements to improve overall product
quality and plan to increase che production capacity of our new Greenfield,

Indiana, plant by 50 percent.

> Litinational compa-

n ;s in developing mar- * In Europe, we opened a new distribution center

kets in Asia Pacific, as in Poland to supply Fasson-brand roll paper

well as major population and film products to the Eastern European

centers in Latin America market, while completing planning for a 40-

and Eastern Europe, acre site for 2 major new films production plant

demand our quality pres-

in Gotha, Germany. E
3. -a-sensitive adhesive !

. .oducts, such as ¢ Qur Canadian solvent-free marerials business dou-

durable Avery-brand bled its capacity to manufacture custom-designed prod- ‘f
marking films, for prod- ucts, as well as office aucomation and variable-information printing label

uct and image promo- products.

tions.

* Rapid expansion developments in Asia Pacific were highlighted by the
establishment of distribution centers in Beijing and Hong Kong to support
our growing Chinese roll marterials operation, as well as business centers in
Thailand and Indonesia, and the acquisition of a materials manufacturing
business in Banglkok.
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While we reshaped our binder business to
streamline product categories, we enjoyed
growing market acceptance of our Avery-
brand divider products — such as Avery
Direce Print Dividers, the first fuli-size
divider that cun be printed directiy through a
deskrop laser princer.

Capiralizing on the rapidly erowing base of compurers \

P g & g |

and desktop printers in Asia and Lacin America, we estab-

lished office producrs organizacions to serve those regions and inctroduced a ‘
P & 8

portfolio of Avery-brand PC-related products to key consumer markets.

In our converted products businesses, our star performer was the proprietary
on-battery tester label for the Duracell PowerCheck battery, which has
received excellent consumer acceprance since its marker launch by Duracell
Inc. last spring. Behind the scenes, a remarkable Company-wide team effort
in product development and manufacturing scale-up, and an exceprional

on-battery label.

Consumer demand clearly esrablished the “peel & stick” postage stamp as
the stamp of choice among U.S. Postal Service customers. We increased our
stamp production by 25 percent and expanded stamp formars to include
sheetlets, booklets and bulk coils. In addition, the explosive growth of ATM
sites in retail locations, such as supermarkers and recail malls, doubied the
number of sites now offering our ATM self-adhesive stamps.

strategic alliance with Duracell, contributed to the success of this unique l
* Increased demand for security and warning iabels for automotive
and durable goods continued to drive the growth of our U.S.

industrial label products business, which broke ground

last vear for a new production facility to serve the

* We relocared our Hong Kong apparel/retail
tag and ticket business into a new manufactur-
ing center and business complex for Asia Pacific

expanding durable goods markert. !_
Operations.




Operations Review

¢ We made significant progress in our Latin American business scrategy with

the formation of a new operating group, as well as the acquisition of a
majority interest in the largest pressure-sensitive base materials supplier in
Argentina, which will manufacture premium-quality paper and film base
macerials for our label customers throughout Latin America.

Reorganized to serve global markets, our marking films business continued
to capitalize on the increased demand for digital printing technologies, as
well as on the growing market for cast, calendared and reflective pressure-
sensitive films for signage applications throughout the world.

CONSUMER AND CONVERTED PRODUCTS

Our consumer and converted products businesses had an outstanding year
in 1996. We continued to deliver highly creative, easy-to-use solutions for
PC users, while expanding into new product and geographic markets. We

SALES BY BUSINESS SECTOR

developed and took to market proprietary, technol-

Consumer and Converted Products .
$1.67 Billion

ogy-driven self-adhesive products that are defining
a strategic new direction for Avery Dennison.

Our North American consumer products
businesses completed the largest systems imple-
mentation in the Company’s history with the
starc-up of an integrated warehousing, order-entry
and accounts receivable system for Avery-brand
products. This new intégrated system will signifi-
cantly enhance our ability to service key accounts.

¢ Expanding our offering of Avery-brand deskcop
printer products beyond the traditional office mar-
ket, we successfully launched our new Avery Kids

line of princable supplies for children, which com-
plements creative software programs and features a

Pressure-Sensitive Adhesives and Materials successful tie-in with che Barbie Print'n Play CD-
$1.69 Billion ROM from Mateel.

¢  Other promising new Avery-brand product

introductions include StaySharp and DualSharp
pocket markers, a line of SmartFolio expandable paper carriers and dual-
branded Avery and Eastpak binder packs for scudents.

Building on our strategic partnerships with major software manufacturers,
we teamed with Microsoft to develop our new Avery Wizard software,
which can be added to Microsoft Word for Windows, and wichin Word,
makes it easier to format and print Avery-brand laser and ink-jet products.







Fasson-brand PRIMAX film materials for consumer package labeling
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'élty is at the core of our brands’ equity,

a measure of the attachment customers
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Avery-brand laminated rotary cards for laser and ink-jet printers
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1 AVERY-BRAND CARD PRODUCTS FOR INK-JET PRINTERS

Preferred by PC users worldwide who demand superior product performance, our
growing line of Avery-brand ink-jet products addresses the needs of the rapidly
expanding ink-jet printer market — expected to reach an installed base of 80 mil-
lion by the year 2000. Our newest Avery ink-jet card products hold special
appeal for the burgeoning number of small office/home office (SOHO) users, who
can promote their businesses with a professional touch, using Avery note, greet-

ing and business cards.

SSON-BRAND FILM MATERIALS FOR CONSUMER PRODUCT PACKAGING
In the competitive beverage industry, where shelf impact is cricical to a product’s
success, manufacturers specify Fasson-brand labeling materials to complement
the upscale image of their products. Foster’s Ice Beer — one of Britain’s five top-
selling lagers ~ demonstrates the clear superiority of Fasson-brand crystal clear
film label stock, which won't scrarch, discolor, tear, run or fall off, despite high-

heat pasteurization or refrigerator storage.

3 FASSON-BRAND EXACT SERVICE PROGRAM
Pressure-sensitive label converters around the world rely on the unique customer-
tailored benefits of our Fasson-brand EXACT Program to get the exact roll
widths they want. EXACT service helps to reduce inventory and overhead costs, ‘!
providing customers with a distinct competitive advantage. In return, this pro- |
gram, based on our technical, logistics and production management expertise,

enhances customer loyalty — a synergistic solution that benefits all concerned.

4 VERY COMPUTER CENTRAL RETAIL DISPLAY

Building upon the strong equity of the Avery brand as a platform for global

growth, we recently launched Avery Computer Central — a one-stop shopping
source for a wide range of Avery-brand PC-related products, including conve-
nient 10-sheet packages of our most popular laser and ink-jet printer products.
Based on its success — with distribution in more than 9,000 major mass market
retail ouclets in the United States in its first year alone — plans are underway to

expand distribution internationally.
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Our brands are market Jeaders

customer base and our reach

into new globai marketis,




Bui- 7% Powerful Braud; 21

4 AVERY DENNISON-BRAND MEDICAL-GRADE TAPES
When Johnson & Johnson — the world’s foremost health-care product manufactur-
er — wanted to create next-generation Band-Aid brand adhesive bandage products,
it turned to Avery Dennison. As a global pressure-sensitive technology leader and
producer of medical-grade tapes for two decades, Avery Dennison helped develop
the highly popular, water-resistant Band-Aid brand Sport Strip bandage, a new

type of adhesive bandage designed to stay on during sports and exercise.

2 FASSON-BRAND FASCLEAR FILM FOR CONSUMER PACKAGE LABELING
Capruring the essence of a product, projecting the right look, creating the mood
and feel. Beginning wich the label, that’s the tough assignment of today’s con-

sumer package —~ and why Avery Dennison is the recognized industry leader in

quality labeling materials that meet packagers’ exacting needs. Qur versatile
Fasson-brand FasClear label film, for example, provides a no-label look for
Vaseline skin products, enhancing the product’s image and appeal on retail

shelves around the world.

3 CLEAR ADVANTAGE THERMAL-TRANSFER LABELING FOR GLASS BOTTLES
The superior colors, durability and crisp, photographic-quality graphics of Avery
Dennison ClearADvantage thermal-transfer labeling technology provide con-
sumer product manufacturers with clear competitive advantages for identifying
and promoting their products. That's why The Coca-Cola Company specifies

ClearADvantage to enhance the look of its distinctive glass bottle for beverage

promotions and to create a consistent graphic image for its Coca-Cola bottles

worldwide.

4 \VERY.-BRAND BINDERPACK

What happens when two market leaders — Avery and Eastpak — form a strategic
alliance and associate their highly recognizable and respected brand names?
Greater leverage for both in the mass market channel, as demonstrated by our

E new Avery BinderPack. Part of the Avery Eastpak product line, which includes
new NotePack and PencilPack binder accessories, the durable, fabric-covered
BinderPack promises to appeal to its target youth audience because it resembles
the popular Eastpak backpack — and because of the combined equity of the

Eastpak and Avery names.
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" Reliable. The quality of our Fasson-brand

@ labeling materials imparts an image of
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1 FASSON-BRAND MIRAGE EXTRUDED FILM FOR BOTTLE LABELING
Attracted by the exceptional print quality, aesthetics and production versatility
offered by pressure-sensitive labeling systems, premium wineries are increasingly
switching from conventional glue-applied labels to Fasson-brand pressure-sensi-
tive paper and film materials to enhance the shelf image of their wines. The
beauty and no-label appearance of our Fasson Mirage extruded film promise wine

manufacturers, and wine lovers alike, the crystal clear look of qualicy.

Z2 AVERY DENNISON DOUBLE-COATED ADHESIVE TAPE
When FedEx needed a secure, quick-stick closure system to seal its mailing boxes
; and tubes, Avery Dennison delivered. Since that time, the bond between the two
worldwide industry leaders has continued to strengthen. Today, the overnighe

delivery service expert relies on our advanced double-coated adhesive tape — with

the FedEx logo imprinted on its liner — to assure that packages remain securely

sealed until cthey reach their final destination.

3 SELF-ADHESIVE POSTAGE STAMPS
Responding to growing consumer demand for peel & stick stamps, Avery
Dennison has produced more than 490 million 20-scamp convertible booklets
of self-adhesive Flag Over Porch design stamps since 19935, which included the
largest single order for a self-adhesive definitive stamp convertible booklet in
U.S. Postal Service history. As the only fully integraced U.S. supplier of adhesive
coating, security printing and converting technologies for postage stamp produc-
tion, Avery Dennison continues to benefit from the increasing popularity of self-
adhesive stamps, which accounted for 60 percent of all U.S. first-class stamps

sold last year, compared to 25 percent in 1995.

4 FASSON-BRAND LABEL MATERIALS FOR VARIABLE-
INFORMATION PRINTING APPLICATIONS
The speed and accuracy of today’s bar-code driven world depends on the quality of
the printed bar code — which predominantly relies on self-adhesive labels co carry
the machine-scannable information. For product tracking, inventory control,
distribution, logistics management and a multitude of other uses, our Fasson-brand
pressure-sensitive label stocks set the industry standard for variable-informarion

" printing applications with self-adhesive materials that ensure superior bar-code

printing, accurate scanning and trouble-free adhesion to a wide range of surfaces.
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1 AVERY KIDS SOFTWARE AND SUPPLIES
Reinforcing consumers’ perception of the Avery brand as an innovative market
leader, our Avery Kids Software and Supplies represents a totally new retail cate-
gory — one with exciting potential. Launched in the fall of 1996 to widespread
consumer acceptance, the easy-to-format “print shop” line makes it possible for
computer-savvy children ages 4 to 13 to use pre-set layouts in leading children’s
software programs and CD-ROMs - such as Barbie Print’n Play from Mateel — to

create kid-friendly stickers and cards on their desktop printers.

2 FASSON-BRAND PRIMAX FILM MATERIALS FOR CONSUMER
PRODUCT PACKAGING )
When the product you're selling depends on the image of quality — and che qual-
ity of image ~ there’s no compromise. You go for the best. That’s why Kodak
depends on our Fasson-brand PRIMAX premium opaque film to identify its new

Kodak Advantix photographic film. The unique characteristics of our proprietary

pressure-sensitive film label create high-performance packaging systems chat

assure an immediate, and lasting, impression of quality.

3 AVERY-BRAND MARKING FILMS FOR COMMERCIAL SIGNAGE
In today’s increasingly global marketplace, Avery Dennison is supplying
high-qualicy, durable marking films to an expanding base of international
customers. Our Avery-brand translucent pressure-sensitive marking films
deliver superior graphics for service stations in India and other countries

around the world.

4 AVERY-BRAND STAYSHARP AND DUALSHARP MARKERS
Creative solutions and the Avery name go hand-in-hand. Take our new Avery-

brand StaySharp fine-point permanent marker, for example. StaySharp marker

provides a fray-resistant tip that stays 25 percent sharper than the competition.
Its companion marker, our new Avery-brand DualSharp marker with two writing
tips, is the only pocket-sized marker of its kind made by a leading U.S.

manufacturer.,
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1 SELF-ADHESIVE STAMPS WITH PEEL-APART BACKING

To manufacture the nation’s first-ever self-adhesive commemorative stamp

pane with a peel-apart backing, the U.S. Postal Service turned to Avery

Dennison. As a major supplier to the USPS, sole supplier of self-adhesive

ATM stamps and pressure-sensitive scamp pioneer, we used our expertise to
develop an innovative die-cutting technology that makes it possible to
remove an individual stamp from a 20-stamp pane intact with its liner — a

feature that appeals to consumers and stamp collectors alike.

2 AVERY WIZARD SOFTWARE
Proprietary new Avery Wizard add-in software — an exciting extension of our

alliances with more than 100 leading software manufacturers — makes it possi-

ble for Microsoft Word for Windows users to create reusable mailing lists, and

-

to merge and print on more than 100 Avery-brand laser and ink-jet products.
This easy-to-use software program, which works within the leading word pro-

cessing software program, has the potential to incroduce millions of consumers

worldwide to the breadth of Avery-brand office automation products.

3 AVCOAT DRY PAINT FILM LAMINATE FOR AUTOMOTIVE APPLICATIONS
Avery Dennison’s patented, high-performance Avcoat pressure-sensitive Dry
Paint film provides automotive OEMs a durable, economical and environ-
mentally friendly alternative to spray painting. Chrysler Corporation recently

selected high-gloss Avcoat film to black out the window pillar area of its

1997 Dodge Dakota truck extended cab models. To assure ease of application
and an ultra-smooth result, we engineered our proprietary film laminate to
the precise sizes and shapes needed for the Dakota — a process developed in

parcnership with Dodge.

4 BATTERY TESTER LABELS
Working in strategic parenership with Duracell Inc., Avery Dennison developed
a pressure-sensitive on-battery label design so revolutionary that it recently won
the World Label Association’s highly regarded Innovation Award. The world’s
only alkaline battery with a fuel-gauge-like on-battery rester — which permics an
electrically conductive resistor circuit to convert battery power to heat — the
Duracell PowerCheck battery began shipping in size AA in North America last

summer and ultimately will be distributed globally in most battery sizes.

i
e
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? BUSINESS SECTORS

Avery Dennisen’s businesses are divided into the following sectots and operating groups:

WORLDWIDE QPERATING GROUPS/Growth Drivers

PRESSURE-SENSITIVE ADHESIVES AND MATERIALS SECTOR T 4
A
MATERIALS - AMERICAS. ASIA AND EUROPE :
* Technical advances in adhesive products for fabricating and bonding applications ‘
* Changing marker requirementcs for improved printing capabilicy, clear puckage labeling and i

environmentally friendly products
* Expanded ingredient and nutritional labeling requirements
* Customer demand for service advantages

( u\l’[Y Iz\i" o __?,/—
Fasson-brand EXACT . Techmcnl advances in adhesive products for fabricacing and bonding appiications 2
service program :
o _ |

MARKING FILMS g

* Adoption of wide formac digital printing technologies for short-term and promotional graphics '

CHEMICAL B
* Use of pressure-sensitive adhesives applications

CONSUMER AND CONVERTED PRODUCTS SECTOR - = 4

OFFICE AND CONSUMER PRODUCTS j
* Marker acceprance of innevative products thar suppore office and consumer aucomarion and simplify office pmcq
* Continuing growth and evolurion of variable-information printing technologies

* Groweh of superstores and mass market outlers in North America and Europe

ClearADvantage ther- * Demand for vendor-managed inventory systems and ocher service enhancements

mal cransfer labeling S : ;

for glass concainers CONVERTED PRODUCTS - NORTH AMERICA AND EUROPE : i
* Groweh in demand for film material applications in automotive, durable goods, security labeling i

and other markers

* Conrinued demand for high-quality product idencification. graphics and automatic application systems
+ Demand for inventory management systems using bar-coded labels

VIP CONVERTED PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA AND FASTENER WORLDWIDE

* Retail demand for floor-ready merchandise and growing need to control and secure in-store merchandise
* Demand for aucomated high-speed applicacion of product identification items

* Expansion of laser printing technologies in induserizl applications

SECURITY PRINTING
* Consumer demand for ease-of-use products char take advantage of innovative label designs and constructions

AUTOMOTIVE -
* Demand for cars, lighe rrucks and sport utilicy vehicles

*+ Design trends for automobile, commercial fleet and recreacional vehicle graphics

Avery-brand card . ——— - L
oroducts for ink-jec MERCHANT PRODUCTS
nrinrers * Growing digital printing marcket
* Growing Eastern European markect

AXLA PACTFI AN LATIN AMIRICA
* Growing demand for high-quality means of producr idencificacion as consumer-based markets develop

* Growth in computers and laser/ink-jec printers in Asia Pacific and Lacin America for addressing and
variable-information printing

* Continued growch in the sourcing of appacel from Asian councries and recail demand for
pre-identified merchandise
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Major Markets/Praduces

Operations in the United Staces, Europe, Latin America, South Africa and Asia Pacific manafacture and macket
pressure-sensicive coated papers, films and foils in roll form, which are sold to fabel printers and converters.
Fusson-brand paper 2ad film stocks are used in a variety of industrial, commercial and consumer applications.
Major markecs include industrial, business and thermal labeling, promotional and decorative applicarions. Cerzain
unics also manufacture and marker proprietary film facestocks and release-coaced materials.

Specialty tapes are sold co industrial and medical converters, original equipmenc manufaccurers and disposable
diaper producers worldwide.

High-performance and recroreflective films are sold in che decorative graphics (commercial sign, digital printing,
transportation and promotional), corporate graphics, traffic and safety, architectural and automorive markets; and gov-
ernmenc and traffic applications mackets. Digical imaging films are used in the induserial label and office markets.

Operations in the Unized States and Europe produce a range of emulsion-based acrylic polymer adhesives, protec-
tive coatings and elecrroconductive resins and binders.

Businesses manufacture 2 wide range of Avery-brand products for office, home and school uses, including: pres-
sure-sensicive labels, laser and ink-jet priacer labels, cards and software, three-ring binders, dividers, presenzation
and organizing systems and marking pens.

Nerth American operations produce custom pressure-sensitive and heat-transfer labels for the ancomorive and
durable goods industries and custom pressure-sensicive labels and specialty combination products for the electronic
data-processing market. European operacions produce custom and stock labets, lzbeling machinery and daca print-
ing systems, which are marketed co 2 wide range of industrial users.

Operations produce tags, lzbels, printing systems, integrated shipping and receiving systems, marking syscems,
plastic fasteners, ties acd application devices for apparel and retail markets, as wetl as for induscrial users worldwide,

Securicy Princing manufaccures self-adhesive stamps for the U.S, and international postal services, and state-of-che-
art on-barttery-testing labets,

Autorotive operations manufaccure and convert filrms for vehicle finishes, striping and identification, Avloy Dry
Paint film laminate is supplied to global aucomorive original equipment manufacturers.

Businesses manufacrure pressure-sensitive sheeted and die-cuc papers and films, which are sold through fine-paper
merchancs.

Operacions established in Asia Pacific and Lacin America manufacture and market roll marerials and consumer and
onverted products to customers in those geographic markets.
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LEVEN-YZAR SUMMARY

Compound Growth Rare

10 Year

(Doliurs:“-:md sharc:‘:“in millions} 5 Year 1996_1_ 1995
FOR THE YEAR I
Nec sales 4.8% 5.8% $3,2225 33,1139
Gross profic 5.0 5.1 1,018.3 95~ 3
Marketing, general and administrative expense ' 1.7 4.5 712.4 689.3
Incerest expense 1 3.5 374 443
Income before taxes 20.9 7.4 270.6 2247
Tuxes on income 17.8 4.5 94.7 8.0
Net income 22.8 9.4 175.9 143.7
Research and development expense 2.3 3.9 54.6 52.7
Depreciation 3.8 7.2 100.2 95.3
Average common shares oucstanding'" (3.3 (.9 105.0 106.5
PER COMMON SHARE INFORMATION
Ner income per common share 26.9% 10.3% $  1.68 § 1.35
Dividends per common share 1C.3 13.8 .62 55
Book value at fiscal year end 3.6 4.6 8.03 7.69
Markert price at fiscal year end 231 14.4 35.88 2507
Marker price range 23.88 wo 16.63 to
35.88 25.07
AT YEAR END
Working capiral 5 1106 S 127.6
Property, plant and equipment, net 962.7 907 .4
Total assets 2,036.7 1,963.6
Long-term debt 370.7 334.0
Toral debc 466.9 449.4
Shareholders’ equity 832.0 815.8
Number of employees 15,800 15,500
STATISTICS
Gross profic margin 31.6% 30.7%
Marketing, general and administrative expense as a percent of sales 22.1 22.2
Income before taxes as a percenr of sales 8.4 7.2
Nert income as a percenc of sales 5.5 4.6
Effective rax rate 35.0 36.0
Research and development expense as a percent of sales 1.7 1.7
Long-term debr as a percenc of total long-term capital 30.8 29.0
Tortal debr as a percenc of total capiral 33.9 35.3
Return on average shareholders’ equity 214 18.6
Return on average toral capital 16.4 14.4

ewo-for-one common stock splic.

[n 1990, the Company incurred $85.2 million in prerax charges related to che merger of Avery International Corperation and

Dennison Manufacturing Company and $13.8 million of merger-related costs. Afcer adjusting for these charges, 1990 nert income

was 37 1.7 million, or $.58 per common share.

Per common share amounts and average common shares outstanding for years prior to 1996 have been restated co reflect che December 1996

In 1987, a restruceucing resulred in precax charges of $25.2 million, which decreased net income by $25 million, or $.21 per common share.
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1994 1993 1992 1991 199042 1989 1988 1987 19806
$2,856.7 $2,608.7 32,6229 $2,545.1 $2,390.2 32,490.9 $2,291.4 82,165.1 $1,828.4
907.8 818.1 838.2 796.2 808.3 806.7 780.2 734.6 620.1
691.9 642.7 665.7 653.9 752.7 591.0 554.7 571.2 460.6
43.0 43.2 42.3 37.5 40.0 35.1 353.5 324 26.6
172.9 132.2 130.2 104.8 15.6 180.6 190.0 151.0 1329
63.3 48.9 50.1 41.8 97 66.4 73.0 60.8 61.0
109.4 84 4 80.1 63.0 5.9 114.2 117.0 70.2 71.9
49.1 455 46.7 48.7 33.7 51.0 474 41.5 37.3
87.9 84.1 83.8 83.1 80.8 71.5 63.8 58.8 49.9
111.1 115.9 120.8 123.9 123.9 124.2 123.4 120.6 114.6
.98 $ 73 $ .66 8 St $ .05 $ 92 $ 95 $ 38 3 .63
50 .45 41 .38 .32 .27 .23 21 17
6.81 6.40 6.82 6.73 6.83 6.55 6.25 5.75 5.13
17.75 14.69 14.38 12.69 10.75 15.94 11.00 9.32 9.35
13.32 w0 12.75 to 11.63 to 9.69 to 7.82 1o 10.50 to 8.57 wo 8.00 to 8.63 0
17.88 15.57 14.44 12.75 16.50 15.94 13.00 14.57 11.88
122.8 $ 141.6 $§ 2226 $§ 226.0 $ 298.8 $ 3239 $ 314.3 3 3258 3 319.8
831.6 758.5 779.9 814.2 821.7 714.1 66G7.3 574.2 512.8
1,763.1 1,639.0 1,684.0 1,740.4 1,890.3 1,715.9 1,652.2 1,558.5 1,352.4
347.3 3110 334.8 329.5 376.0 317.8 298.8 301.0 320.3
420.7 397.5 427.5 424.0 510.4 418.9 411.3 393.2 384.3
729.0 719.1 802.6 825.0 846.3 811.3 769.6 705.9 585.8
15,400 15,750 16,550 17,095 18,816 19,215 19,114 19,360 19,156
31.8% 31.4% 32.0% 31.3% 31.2% 32.4% 34.0% 33.9% 33.9%
24.2 24.6 254 25.7 25.2 237 242 26.4 25.2
6.1 3.1 5.0 4.1 .G 7.3 8.3 6.1 7.3
3.8 3.2 3.1 2.5 2 4.6 5.1 3.2 3.9
36.7 37.0 385 39.9 62.2 36.8 38.4 46.4 459
1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.0 2.1 1.9 2.0
32.3 30.2 294 28.5 30.8 28.1 28.0 29.9 35.3
36.6 35.6 34.8 33.9 37.6 34.1 34.8 35.8 39.6
14.8 11.0 9.7 7.7 7 14.7 16.0 10.3 12.8
12.1 9.3 8.3 6.7 1.5 12.0 12.7 8.3 10.6
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(In mithions) 906 1995 1994
Ner sales 33,2225 331139 82.8%6.7

Cost of producrs sold 22042

LS. 9973 907

21366 10489

Gross profic
Marketing, general and

wdminiscracive expense Tia 08v.8 G919
Net maun on divesticures

and resteucturing charges 21 1.3

Earnings betore interest and taxes 3 3080 35 2690 35 259

Sales increased 3.5 percent co $3.22 billion in
1996, compared to $3.11 biition in 1995, Excluding
the impact of business divestitures and changes in for-
eign currency exchange races, sales increased 6.4 per-
cent. In 1995, sales increased 9 percent over 1994 sales
of 32.86 billion. Excluding the impact of sales from che
divested operations and changes in foreign currency
exchange rates for 1995, sales increased approximatety
7 percent. During the fourth quarter of 1995, che
Company sold a portion of ics North American label
converting operations. These businesses accounted for
approximately 2 percent of che Company's 1995 toral
sales. Each of the Company’s 1996, 1995 and 1994 fis-
cal years consisted of 52 weeks.
Gross profic margins for the years ended 1996,
1995 and 1994 were 31.6 percent, 30.7 percent and
31.8 percent, respectively. Gross profit margins ducing
1996 improved compared to 1995 due primarily to an
improved product mix, new products, cost reduction
and control programs and increased capacity ucilization.
There was also a $3.2 million LIFO benefit reported
during 1996. The decline in che gross profic percentage
during 1995 was primarily due to a shift in preduct
mix, plant and major production line scarc-ups, and
$1.6 million in expense relaced to LIFO inventories
compared to a benefir of $400,000 for 1994.
Markering, general and adminiscracive expense as
a percent of sales was 22.1 percent in 1996, 22.2 per-
cent in 1995 and 24.2 percent in 1994. The improve-
ment in 1996 over 1993 was primarily accributable o
cost concrol and reduction efforts chroughour the
Company and was achieved despite major investments
in geographic expansion, business realignment and new
produce programs. The improvement during 199% was
primarily actributable o benefits from the Company's
cost reduction programs. « shift in product mix and
increased sales.
During the third quarter of 1996, TESTIUCTUring
actions were taken, resulting in a nec pretax gain of

52.1 million. The Company sold its equity incerest in a
labef operation in Japan for $28.4 million, resulring in
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a pretax gain of 317.9 million. The Company

| also
recorded $15.8 million of restructuring ch

arges. whch
included an asset impairment wrice-down of 56,

lion for long-lived assecs held in che Company's
Consumer and converced products sector. The reseryg.

curing program alse included the feorganization of cep.
rain manutaccuring, distriburion and adminiser,
sites. These costs consisted of severance and rel

3 mii-

iive
ared
costs for approximately 200 positions worldwide (3~
million) and the discontinuance of produce lines and
related asset write-offs ($2.1 million). These ACTIONS are
expected to be completed during 1997 and age expecred
to result in estimared annual savings of approximarely
39 million to 311 million when fully implemenced.

Business restrucruring actions taken during che
fourth quarcer of 1995 resuited in a net pretax gain of
SL.5 million. Cerrain businesses which no longer mer
the Company's scraregy for converting rechnology were
sold for $95 million. A $40.7 million pretax gain on
the sale of these businesses was offser by restructuring
charges of $39.2 million which included the closure of
tour plants and che reorganization of certain manufac-
turing, distribution and administrative sites. These
costs consisted of severance and related costs for approx-
tmately 400 positions worldwide (316.2 million), dis-
continuance of product lines and related asset write-offs
($13.1 million), and plant closure and ocher costs (39,9
million). This program is also expected o be completed
during 1997 and is expecred to result in estimared
arnual savings of $14 millior e 517 millicn when
fuily implemenced. The 1996 and 1995 programs are
an incegral pare of the Company’s ongoing effort to
idenctify opportunities to improve its administracive and
manufacturing cost strucrures.

N

Interest expense as a percent of sales was 1.2 per-
cent in 1996, 1.4 percent in 19995 and 1.5 percent in
1994, The decrease in 1996 was primarily due co the
expiration of interest rate swap agreements during the
fourth quarter of 1995 and an overall lower cost of boc-
rowing. Interest expense increased in 1995 due to high-
er debe levels, bur was more than offser by the impact
of increased sales.

[ncome before taxes, as a percenc of sales, was 8.
percent for 1996, 7.2 percent for 1995 and 6.1 percent
tor 1994. The improvement during 1996 was primarily
due to higher gross profit margins and lower interest
expense as a percent of sales. The improvement during
1995 was primarily due to lower operacing and interest
expenses as a percent of siles. The etfective tax rate was
33 percent in 1996, 36 percent in 1995, and 36.7 per-
cent in 1994,
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Avery Dennison Carvporation

(Ir millions, except per common share amounts) 1996 1995 {994
Net income $175.9  $143.7 51094
Net income per common share 1.68 1.35 .98
Nec income per fully-diluted common share  1.62 1.31 96
Average common shares outstanding 105.0 106.5 1It.1
Average fully-diluted common

shares outstanding 108.3 109.3 115.7

Net income increased to $175.9 million in 1996
compared to $143.7 million in 19953, reflecting a 22 per-
cent increase over 1995. Net income in 1994 was $109.4
million. Net income, as a percent of sales, was 5.5 per-
cent, 4.6 percenct and 3.8 percenr in 1996, 1995 and
1994, respectively.

Net income per common share reached $1.68 in
1996 compared to $1.35 in 1995, a 24 percent increase
over prior year. Net income per commen share was $.98
in 1994. Primarily due to the significant increase in the
Company’s stock price during 1996 and share repurchas-
es, the Company is now required to report net income
per share on a fully-diluted basis. Net income per fully-
diluted common share was $1.62 in 1996, $1.31 in 1995
and $.96 in 1994,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

BY BUSINESS SECTOR

Effective fourth quarter 1996, the Company realigned
the reporting of its businesses from chree sectors to two
— Pressure-sensitive adhesives and materials, and
Consumer and converted products. The realignment
reflects the broadening and related scope of the
Company’s consumer businesses to include products such
as batrery labels, postage stamps and children’s school
supplies. In addicion, certain businesses previously in the
Pressure-sensitive adhesives and materials sector that
emphasize converting technology were reclassified inco
the Consumer and converted products sector. This change
more effectively aligns the Company’s financial reporting
with manufacturing processes and end markets. Sector
information for 1995 and 1994 has been reclassified to
conform with the 1996 sector presentation.

Pressure-sensicive adhesives and materials:

(In millions) 1996 1995 1994
Net sales $1,693.5 $1,589.7 31,3897
Income from operations

before interest and taxes 157.7 144.8 138.8

The Pressure-sensitive adhesives and materials sec-
tor reported increased sales and profics for 1996 com-
pared to 1995. The sector’s income results include
festracturing charges of $7.1 million in 1996 and $15.1
million in 1995. The U.S. operations reported sales
growth for the year primarily due to increased volume
and new products. Profitabilicy improved as a result of
€ost reducrion actions, increased capacity utilization and
improved operating efficiencies. The international busi-
Resses reported increased sales primarily due to ics geo-
&raphic expansion in emerging markets and increased

volume. Profitability for the international businessés
increased primarily due to the extent of restructuring
charges taken in 1995 compared to 1996. This increase
was partially offset by costs related to continued invest-
ments in geographic expansion and major equipment
Start-up costs.

The Pressure-sensitive adhesives and materials sec-
tor reported increased sales and profitability for 1995
compared to 1994. Profitabilicy for the sector increased
despite the $15.1 million in restructuring charges taken
in 1995. The U.S. operations reported a significant
increase in sales due to unic volume growth and pricing
actions. Profitability improvement was primarily due to
sales growth and lower operating expenses as a percent of
sales, but was partially offser by plant and major equip-
ment start-up costs for capacity expansion, and the reor-
ganizacion of certain manufacturing sites. Sales for che
European operations increased significancly primarily as a
resulc of volume growth from improved economic condi-
tions over 1994, pricing actions and changes in foreign
currency rates. Profitability increased, despite costs raken
for restructuring programs, primarily as a resulc of sales
growth, lower operating expenses as a percent of sales
and 2 more favorable product mix.

Consumer and converted products:

(In milliens) 1996 1995 1994
Ner sales $1,670.5 $1,588.6 31,488.6
Income from operations

before interest and caxes 159.0 147.8 102.1

The Consumer and converted products sector report-
ed increased sales and profitability for 1996 compared to
1995. The sector’s income results include restructuring
charges of $8.7 million for 1996 compared 0 a $16.6
million net gain on divestirures and restructuring charges
in 19935. The U.S. operations reported increased sales pri-
marily due to the growth of its battery label business and
for its Avery-brand products. Profitability improved pri-
marily due to increased sales volume, new products and
operating improvements, including improved logisrics.
The international businesses reported higher sales due to
geographic expansion and growth of its office label busi-
nesses; however, this sales increase was partially offset by
sales declines in a portion of the French operations.
Profitability in 1996 for the international businesses was
comparable to 1995. Profit improvements from cost con-
trol programs and product pruning were offset by lower
sales in one of the French operations and Starc-up Costs
relaced to geographic expansion.

The Consumer and converted products sector
reported increased sales and profits for 19935 compared to
1994. Profits in 1995 included a $40.7 million gain
from the sale of cerrain nonstrategic Norch American
label converting operations, which was partially offser by
$24.1 million in restructuring charges. The U.S. opera-
tions reported increased sales for 1995 primarily due to
sales growth of its Avery-brand and postage scamp
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businesses. Proficability increased for che US. operations
due to successful new products, an improved product mix
and cost reduction actions, including the consolidacions
o distributien warehouses and sales forces in che United
States. The international businesses ceported increased
sales as a resule of new products, an improved European
economy and changes in forergn currency cates. A more
favorable product mix coupled with cost reduction
actions taken in previous years and lower operating
expenses as & percent of sales resulted in significantly
higher profitability over 1994.

PINANCIAL CONDITION

Average working capital, excluding short-term debr, as a
percent of sales was 9.1 percent in 1996, 9.6 percent in
1995 and 10 percent in 1994. The decrease in 1996 was
primarily due to higher sales and an increase in current
liabilities. Average inventory turnover was 9.3 in 1996,
9.0 in 1995 and 9.3 in 1994; the average number of days
sales ourstanding in accounts receivabie was 33 days in
1996, 1995 and 1994.

Net cash flow from operating activities was $304
million in 1996, $187.9 million in 1995 and $265 mil-
lion in 1994. The increase in net cash flow in 1996 was
due primarily to the change in working capital require-
ments and che Company’s improved profitability. The
decrease in 1995 was primarily due to a change in work-
ing capital requirements which was partially offset by the
increase in ner income.

Totai debrt increased $17.5 million to $466.9 mil-
lion compared to year end 1995. Toral debr to total capi-
tal was 35.9 percent ac year end 1996 compared o0 35.5
percent at year end 1995. Long-term debr as a percent of
rotal long-term capiral increased to 30.8 percent from 29
percent at year end 1995,

In October 1996, the Company established the
Avery Dennison Corporation Employee Scock Benefit
Truse {che “Trust”) to fund a portion of the Company’s
obligacions arising from various current and furure

AVERAGE WORKING
CAPITAL, EXCLUDING
SHORT-TERM DEBT, AS A
PERCENT OF SALES
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—
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emplovee benefic plans. As a resule, che Company g1 18
million shares of creasury stock to the Truse a¢ fair mgr.
ket value. This transaction had no impact on the
Company's financial condicion. The Truse has o 15-vear
lite duzing which it will urilize the stock o satisfy cep,
tatn Company obligarions.

Shareholders’ equity increased to $837 million
from $815.8 miflion ar year end 1995, During 199, the
Company repurchased 3.8 million shares of common
stock at a cost of $3109.3 million. The cost of treasury
stock held, after the sale of shares o che Trust and n;et of
shares reissued under the Company’s stock option and
incentive plans, ac year end 1996 decreased $212.4 mil-
lion to $67.5 million from year end 1995, In January
1995, the Board of Directors authorized rhe repurchase of
an addirional ten million shares of che Company's ouc-
standing common stock for an aggregate of 30.4 million
shares authorized for repurchase. As of year end 1996, 4
cumularive 254 million shares of common stock had
been purchased under this auchorization,

The return on average shareholders’ equity was
21.4 percent in 1996, 18.6 percenc in 1995 and 14.8
percent in 1994, The improvements during 1996 and
1995 were primarily due co a significant increase in prof-
itability and che impact from share repurchases. The
return on average toral capiral for cthose three years was
16.4 percent, 14.4 percent and 12.1 percent, respectively,
The increases during rhose years were primarily due to
profitability improvements and more effective urilization
of the Company’s assets.

The Company, like other U.S. corporations, has
periodically received notices from che 1.8, Environmental
Protecrion Agency and state environmencal agencies
alleging that the Company s a potentially responsible
party (PRP) for past and future cleanup coscs at haz-
ardous waste sites. The Company has received requests
for informarion, notices and/or claims wich respect to 17
waste sites in which the Company has no ownership

COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING AT YEAR END
tIn millions)
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interest. Litigation has been initiated by a governmental
authority with respect o four of these sites, but the
Company does not believe that any such proceedings will
result in the imposition of monetary sanctions.
Environmental investigatory and remediation projects are
also being undertaken on property presently owned by
the Company. The Cornpany has accrued liabilities for all
sites where it is probable that a loss will be incurred and
che minimum cost or amount of che loss can be reason-
ably estimared. However, because of the uncertainties
associated with environmental assessments and remedia-
tion activities, future expense to remediate the currently
identified sites, and sites which could be idencified in the
future for cleanup, could be higher than cthe liability cur-
rently accrued. Based on current site assessments, man-
agement believes that the potential liability over the
amounts currently accrued would not materially affect
the Company.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
In addition to cash flow from operations, the Company
has more than adequate financing arrangements, at com-
petitive rates, to conduct its operations.

During the fourch quarter of 1996, the Company
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
$150 millien in principal amount of medium-term notes.
As of year end 1996, no nores had been issued. Proceeds
from the medium-term notes will be used to reduce debt
and for other general corporate purposes. The Company’s
currently outstanding medium-term notes have maturi-
ties from 1997 through 2025 and have a weighted-aver-
age interest rate of 7.2 percent,

The Company's restructuring programs included
the 1996 $28.4 million sale of its equity interest in a
label operarion in Japan and the 1995 $95 million sale of
certain non-strategic label converting businesses. The
testructuring programs had an estimated cost of $15.8
million and $39.2 million for 1996 and 1993, respec-
tively. At year end 1996 and 1995, $16 million and
$24.5 million, respectively, remained accrued for both

RETURN ON AVERAGE
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

21.4%

18.6%
14.8%

1.0%
7%
iy
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programs and related primarily to employee severance
and plant closure costs. By year end 1996 and 1993,
total cash expenditures paid for both reseructuring pro-
grams totalled $14.5 million and $1.5 million, respec-
eively, and related primarily to employee severance and
planc closure costs.

Capiral expenditures were $187.6 million in 1996
and $190.3 million in 1995. Capiral expenditures for 1997
are expected to be approximately $190 to $200 mitlion.

The annual dividend rate per share increased to
$.62 in 1996 from $.55 in 1995 and $.50 in 1994,

The Company concinues to expand its operations in
Asia Pacific, Latin America and Europe. The Company's
future resules are subject to changes in economic condi-
tions and the impact of fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange and interest rates. To manage its exposure to
these fluctuations, the Company may enter into forward
exchange and interest rate contracts, where appropriare.

Effective 1997, Mexico will be treated as a hyperin-
flationary economy for accounting purposes due to the
curnulative inflation rate over the past three years. As a
resule, the funcrional cutrency of subsidiaries operating in
Mexico will change from the peso to the dollar and crans-
lacton gains and losses will be included in net income.
These operations, including chose located in Brazil which
also operate in a hyperinflationary economy, are noc signif-
icant to the Company’s consolidated financial posicion.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS
In July 1996, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Seatement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
125, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assers and Extinguishments of Liabilities”. The standacd
revised the guidelines for recognition, measurement and
disclosure of cransfers and servicing of financial assets and
extinguishment of debe. It will be effective for transactions
occurring afrer December 31, 1996. The Company will
implement the standard during the firse quarrer of 1997,
if applicable; however, the impact has yer to be determined.

RETURN ON AVERAGE
TOTAL CAPITAL
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14.4%
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

£
)

LDQI'lars in millicns) 1996 1995
ASRETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalencs S 38 $ 270
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubeful accounrs
of $17.5 and $17.6 for 1996 and 1995, respectively 448.5 4441
Inventories, net 244 .4 2232
Othert receivables 257 248
Prepaid expenses 17.8 21.9
Deferred taxes 64.3 59,1
Total current assers 804.5 860.1
Property, plant and equipmenr, ac cost:
Land 37.7 37.8
Buildings 405.3 388.9
Machinery and equipment 1,180.3 1,089.1
Construction-in-progress 144.6 136.3
1,767.9 1,652.1
Accumulated depreciation 805.2 744.7
962.7 907 .4
Intangibles resulting from business acquisitions, nec 135.9 124.3
Non-current deferred taxes 7.1 5.8
Other assets 126.5 126.0
$2,036.7 $1,963.6
LIABILITIES AND SHARFHOLDERS' EQUITY
Currenc liabilities:
Short-term and current portion of long-term debr $ 962 $ 1154
Accounts payable 230.7 169.9
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 134.3 132.2
Other accrued liabilities 208.2 215.1
Income caxes payable 23.0 39.0
Deferred raxes 1.5 9
Total current liabilicies 693.9 672.3
Long-term debt 370.7 334.0
Long-term retirement benefirs and other accrued liabilicies 96.6 99.8
Non-current deferred caxes 435 41.5
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, $1 par value, authorized - 200,000,000 shares;
issued - 124,126,624 shares ac year end 1996 and 1995 1241 124.1
Capiral in excess of par value 475.4 129.6
Rerained earnings 945.6 837.8
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment 28.3 33.8
Cost of unaliocated ESOP shares (29.4) (27.0)
Minimum pension liabilicy (2) (2.6}
Employee stock benefit cruse, 17,959,358 shares (644.3) -—
Treasury stock ar cost, 2,551,808 shares and 18,007,526 shares
ac year end 1996 and 1995, respectively {(67.3) (279.9)
Toral shareholders’ equity 832.0 815.8
$2,036.7 $1,963.6

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Scacements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

3

4 {In millions, except per share amounts) 1996 1995 1994
i Net sales $3,222.5 $3,113.9  $2,856.7
. Cost of products sold 2,204.2 2.156.6 1,948.9
Gross profit 1,018.3 957.3 907.8
Marketing, general and administrative expense 712.4 639.8 691.9
© Net gain on divestitures and restructuring charges 2.1 1.5 —
Interest expense 37.4 44.3 43.0
Income before taxes 270.6 224.7 172.9
Taxes on income 4.7 81.0 63.5
. Net income $ 1759 $ 1437 $ 1094
: Net income per common share $ 168 § 135 $ .98
Net income per fully-diluted common share 1.62 1.3t 96

Average shares outstanding:
3 Common shares 105.0 106.5 18!
i Fully-diluted common shares 108.3 109.3 113.7
] Common shares outstanding at year end 103.6 106.1 107.1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Sratements
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Common
stock, 31
{Dollazs in [I]i_llions)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Capital in
excess of

par value

Retained
earnings

cranslation
adjustment

SHAREHOLDERS'

Cumulative

Cost of
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ESQOP
shares

toreign
CUrrency
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EQUITY

Minimum
pension
liabilicy

Employee
stock
benefic
truse

Treasury
stock

Fiscal year ended 1993 §124.1

Repurchase of 6.4 million shares
for ereasury

Stock 1ssued under option plans,
net of tax and dividends paid on
stock held by leveraged ESOPs

Net income

Dividends: §.50 per share

Translation adjustments, net of tax

ESOP transacrions, net

Minimum peasion liability

$132.4

(1.4

$698.9

109.4
(53.1)

3010.1)  $(53.2)

26.8
15.6

$(8.9)

3.9

—  §(164.1)

(105.7)

16.4

Fiscal year ended 1994

Repurchase of 1.7 million shares
for treasury

Stock 1ssued under option plans,
nec of tax and dividends paid on
stack held by leveraged ESOPs

Ner income

Dividends: $.35 per share

Translacion adjustments, nert of tax

ESQP ctransactions, nec

Minimum pension liabilicy

(1.4)

143.7
{39.1)

{(37.6)

17.1
10.6

(5.0)

o
A

— (2334

{35.1)

8.6

Fiscal year ended 1995 124.1

Repuzchase of 3.8 million shares
for treasury

Stock issued under option plans,
net of tax and dividends paid on
stock held by leveraged ESOPs

Nert income

Dividends: $.62 per share

Translation adjustments, net of tax

Employee stock benefir truse
transaccions, nec

ESQP transactions, net

Minimum pension liability

129.6

9.0

336.8

837.8

175.9
(68.1)

o3
Uy
o0

(27.0)

(2.4

(2.6)

24

— {2799

(109.3)

11.2

(644.3) 3105 p

Fiscal year ended 1996 $124.1

3475.4

$945.6

$28.5  $(29.4)

$(.2)

$(644.3) $ (67.5)

See Notes to Consolidared Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Common  Capiral in
stock, $1 excess of
{Dollars in millions} par value par value

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Rerained
earnings

Cumulative
foreign
currency
translation
adjustment

Cost of Employee

unallocated  Minimum stock
ESOP pension benefic Treasury
shares liabilicy truse stock

Fiscal year ended 1993 $124.1  $132.4

Repurchase of 6.4 million shares
for treasury
Stock issued under option plans,
net of tax and dividends paid on
stock held by leveraged ESOPs (1.4
Nert income
Dividends: $.50 per share
Translation adjuscments, net of rax
ESOP transactions, net
Minimum pension liabilicy

$698.9

109.4
(53.1)

$(10.1)

26.8

$(53.2) 3(8.9) —  3(164.1)

(105.7)

16.4

15.6
3.9

Fiscal year ended 1994 124.1 131.0

Repurchase of 1.7 million shares
for treasury
Stock issued under option plans,
net of tax and dividends paid on
stock held by leveraged ESOPs (1.4)
Net income
Dividends: $.53 per share
Translation adjustments, net of tax
ESOP transactions, net
Minimum pension liabiiicy

753.2

143.7
(59.1)

16.7

17.1

(37.6) 5.0 —  (2534)

(35.1)

8.6

10.6
2.4

Fiscal year ended 1995 124.1 129.6

Repurchase of 3.8 million shares
for creasury
Srock issued under option plans,
nec of tax and dividends paid on
stock held by leveraged ESOPs 9.0
Nert income
Dividends: $.62 per share
Translazion adjustments, ner of rax
Employee stock benefir trust
transactions, net 336.8
ESOP transactions, net
Minimum pension liability

837.8

175.9
(68.1)

(27.00 (2.6 — (2799

(109.3)

11.2

(644.3) 3105

(2.4)
2.4

Fiscal year ended 1996 $124.1 $475.4

$945.6

$28.3

$(29.4) $(.2) $(644.3) $ (67.5)

See Notes to Consolidaced Financial Statemencs
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

{In millions) 1996 1995 1994 ;
QPERATING ACTIVITILES
Net income $175.9 $143.7 $109.4
Adjustments to reconcile ner income to net cash provided by operating activicies:
Depreciation 100.2 95.3 87.9
Amortization 13.2 12.6 14.6
Ner gain on divestitures and restructuring charges (2.1) (L.5) —
Deferred taxes 8 (17.6) (6.1

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effect of foreign currency cranslacion,
business acquisitions and divestituzes, and restructuring charges:

Trade accounts receivable, net (.9 (52.9) (24.6)
Inventories, net (18.1) (18.5) (19.2)
Other receivables 1.2 1.8 2.8
Prepaid expenses 3.7 (5.3) (2.6)
Accounts payable and accrued liabiliries 45.7 18.6 06.4
Taxes on income (12.4) 11.4 (.8)
Long-term retirement benefits and ocher accrued liabilicies (3.2) 1 7.8 i
Net cash provided by operating activities 304.0 187.9 265.0
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (187.6) (190.3) (163.3)
Acquisitions, sale of assets and business divesticures 12.1 96.7 16.2
Ocher 2.1) (19.1) (10.2)
Net cash used in investing activities (177.9) (112.7) (157.3) ,
FINANCING ACTIVITIES .
Increase in long-term debt 51.0 100.0 100.5
Dectease in long-term debt (14.3) (107.9) (49.3)
Net (decrease) increase in shore-term debt (18.8) 40.5 {16.0)
Dividends paid (68.1) (59.1) {(55.1)
Purchase of treasury stock (109.3) (35.1) (105.7)
Other 9.9 10.2 15.0
Net cash used in financing activities (149.6) (51.4) (110.6)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash balances — A .2
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (23.2) 23.9 (2.7)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 27.0 31 5.8
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 38 $ 270 3 3.1

See Notes to Consolidaced Financial Scatements




Avery Dennison Corporation

46

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. Narture of Operations

The Company is a worldwide manufacturer of pres-
sure-sensitive adhesives and materials, and consumer
and converted products. The Company's major mar-
kets are in office products, data processing, healch
care, retail, transporration, induscrial and durable
goods, food and apparel. The Pressure-sensitive adhe-
sives and marerials sector and the Consumer and con-
verted products sector each concribute approximarely
30 percent of the Company’s toral sales. Sales are gen-
erated primarily in the United Srares, concinencal
Europe and the United Kingdom.

Principles of Consolidartion

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and alf of its majority-owned
subsidiaries. Investments in cerrain affiliates {20 percent
to 50 percent ownership) are accounced for by the equity
method of accounting. Certain Drior year amounts have
been reclassified to conform wich current year presenta-
tion. In addition, all per common share amounts and
average common shates outstanding have been restated
to reflece che December 1996 two-for-one common
stock split effected in the form of a stock dividend,

Fiscal Year

The Company’s financial reporting calendar for fiscal
years 1996, 1995 and 1994 reflected 52-week periods
ending December 28, 1996, December 30, 1995 and
December 31, 1994, respectively. Generally each fiscal
year consists of 52 weeks, but every fifth or sixth fiscal
year consists of 53 weeks.

Use of Estimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions for the
reporting period and as of the financial statement dare.
These estimates and assumptions affect che reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosuce of con-
tingenc liabilities, and che reported amounts of rev-
enues and expenses. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash on hand, deposits in banks
and short-term investments, with macurities of three
monchs or less when purchased, as cash and cash equiy-
alents. The carrying amounts of chese assers approxi-
maze fair value due to the shorc maturity of che insery.
ments. At year end 1995, $23.6 million was held in
short-term investments, Cash paid for inrerest and taxes
was as follows:

(In millions) 1996 1995 1994
Interest, net of capitalized amounts  $40.0 346.7 $42.7
Income taxes, net of refunds 115.9 87.2 70.6
Inventories

Inventories are stated ar the lower of cost or market value.
Cost is determined using both the firse-in, first-out
(FIFO) and last-in, firsc-out (LIFC) methods. Invencories
valued using the LIFO method comprised 37 percent, 40
percent and 41 percent of inventories before LIFQ adjusc-
ment at year end 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

During 1996, certain inventories were reduced
resulcing in the liquidation of LIFO inventory carried at
lower costs prevailing in prior years as compared with
carrent costs. The effect was to reduce 1996 cost of
products sold by $3.2 million. Inveacories a year end
were as follows:

(In mitlions) 1996 1595
Raw materials S 82.7 $ 785
Work-in-process 72.4 72.4
Finished goods 123.4 109.6
LIFO adjustment (34.1) (37.3)
$244.4 $223.2

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is generally computed using che straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of che assets.
Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred;
renewals and becterments are capitalized, Upon the sale
or retirement of properties, the accounts are relieved of
the cost and the related accumulared depreciation, with
any resulting profit or loss included in income.

[ntangibles Resulting From Business
Acquisitions

Intangibles resuleing from business acquisitions consist
primarily of the excess of the acquisition cost over the
fair value of ner assers acquired and are amortized over a
25-t0-40 year period using che straight-line mechod.
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The Company evaluates the carrying value of its good-
will on an ongoing basis and recognizes an impaiement
when the estimated future undiscounted cash flows from
operations are less than the carrying value of the good-
will. Accumulated amortization at year end 1996 and
1995 was $46.6 million and $40.3 million, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation
Financial statements of international operations are
translated into U.S. dollars ac current rates, except for
revenue, costs and expenses which are translated at
average current rates during each teporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency trans-
actions, other than those transactions described below,
are included in income currently. Gains and losses
resulting from hedging the value of investments in cer-
rain international operacions and from translation of
financial scatements are excluded from the statement of
income and are recorded directly to a separate compo-
nent of shareholders’ equity. Translation gains and loss-
es of subsidiaries operating in hyperinflationary
economies are included in net income currently.
Transaction and rranslation losses decreased net
income in 1996, 1995 and 1994, by $1.6 million, $1.8
million, and $1.5 million, respectively.

Financial Instruments

The Company enters into forward exchange and interest
rate contracts o manage exposure to fluctuations in for-
eign currency exchange and interest rates. Gains and
losses on contracts that hedge specific foreign currency
commitments are deferred and subsequently recognized
in net income in the period in which the undeslying
transaction is consummated. The net amounts paid or
received on interest rate agreements are recognized as
adjustments to incerest expense over the terms of the
agreements. Contract premiums paid, if any, are amor-
tized to incerest expense over the terms of the underly-
1ng iNSCrUments.

Revenue Recognition
Sales, provisions for estimared sales returns, and the cost
of products sold are recorded ar the time of shipment.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as
incurred. Research and developmenc expense for 1996,
1995 and 1994 was $54.6 million, $52.7 million and
$49.1 million, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

In October 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Scandards (SFAS) No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation”. The Company has adopted the
disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123. As a result,
the Company has disclosed the pro forma amounts of
net income and net income per common share as if the
compensation cost for the stock option plans had been
derermined based on the fair value of the outstanding
options (see Note 7).

Environmental Expenditures

Environmental expendicures that do not contribure to
current or future revenue generation are expensed.
Expenditures for newly acquired assets and those which
extend or improve the economic useful life of existing
assets are capitalized and amortized over the remaining
asset life. The Company reviews, on a quarterly basis,
its estimares of costs of compliance with environmental
laws and the cleanup of various sites, including sites in
which governmental agencies have designated the
Company as a potentially responsible party. When it 15
probable char obligations have been incurred and where
a minimum cost or z reasonable estimate of the cost of
compliance or remediation can be determined, the
applicable amount is accrued. For other potential liabil-
icies, the timing of accruals coincides with the related
ongoing site assessments. Potennial insurance reim-
bursements are not recorded or offset against the liabili-
ties uncil received, and liabilities are not discounted.

Net lncome Per Share

Net income per common share is compurted by dividing
net income by the weighted-average number of common
shates outstanding. Common shaze equivalents outstand-
ing were excluded from the computation as they were
not dilutive. Nec income per fully-diluted common share
is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-
average number of commeon and common share equiva-
lents outstanding. Common share equivalents include
shares issuable upon the assumed exercise of ourstanding
stock options and stock warrants.
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Furure Accouncing Requirements

In June 1996, the Financial Accounting Scandards
Board issued SFAS No. 125, “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments
of Liabilities”. The standard revised the guidelines for
recognition, measurement and disclosure of cransfers
and servicing of financial assets and extinguishment of

debt. It will be effective for cransacrions occurring after
December 31, 1996.

NOTE 2. DIVESTITURES AND
RESTRUCTURING

During the third quarter of 1996, business restructur-
ing actions resuleed in a net pretax gain of $2.1 mil-
lion. The Company sold its equity interest in a label
operation in Japan for $28.4 million, resulting in a net
gain of $17.9 million. The Company also recorded
charges for certain reseructuring actions which had an
estimated cost of 315.8 million.

The 1996 restructuring actions included che reor-
ganizacion of cerrain manufacruring, distribution and
administracive sites. These costs consisted of severance
and related costs for approximately 200 positions
worldwide (7.4 million) and the discontinuance of
produce lines and related asset disposals (§2.1 million).
In addirion, an asset impairment write-down of $6.3
million was recognized for long-lived assets held in the
Company’s Consumer and converted products sector.

Total cash expenditures for the 1996 restruccur-
ing program are estimated at $7.4 million of which
$5.5 million had been paid by year end 1996; $1.9
millien in employee severance costs remained accrued.
The Company’s 1996 restructuring program is expected
to be complered during 1997 and result in estimaced
annual savings of $9 million to $11 million when fully
implemented.

During 1995, the Company ook specific actions
to restructure certain businesses to improve future prof-
itability. These actions, which included the sale of noa-
strategic businesses and restructuring programs, result-
ed in a ner pretax gain of $1.5 million.

The portion of the North American label convert-
ing operations which no longer met che Company's
scrategy for converting technology was sold during the
fourth quarter of 1995 for $95 million. These businesses
accounted for approximately 2 percent of the Company's
1995 total sales. The $540.7 million pretax gain on che
sale of these businesses was offset by charges related to
the Company’s 1995 restructuring program.
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The Company’s 1995 restructuring program
resulted in a one-time pretax charge of $39.2 million
and included the closure of four plants and che reorga-
nization of certain manufacturing, distribution and
administrative sites. The costs consisted primarily of
employee severance and related costs ($16.2 million) for
approximately 400 positions woridwide, discontinuance
of product lines and related asser write-offs ($13.1 mil-
lion) and plant closure and other coscs ($9.9 million),
At year end 1996, $14.1 million remained accrued
which related mainly to employee severance and plant
closure costs. During 1996, cash expenditures and non-
cash charges toraled 39 million and $1.4 million,
respectively. The Company’s 1995 restructuring pro-
gram is expected to result in annual savings of $14 mil-
lion to $17 million when fully implemenced.

NOTE 3. DEBT
Long-term debt at year end was as follows:

(In millions) 1996 1995
Medium-term notes (6.1% to 8.0% at yearend)  $300.0 $365.0
Domestic variable-rate shorc-term borrowings
refinanced on a long-term basis 51.0 —
Industrial Revenue Bonds (3.7% o 9.995 at
year end) 22.0 220
Orher long-term debe (7.09% to 8.5%% ac year end) 20.2 25.9
393.2 4129
Less: Amounr classified as current (22.5) (78.9)
3370.7 $334.0

The Company has a revolving credit agreement
with four domestic banks ro provide up to $250 miilion
in borrowings through July 1, 2001, wich all amounts
borrowed under this agreement due on the same date.
The Company may annually extend the revolving period
and due dare under certain conditions with approval of
the banks. The financing available under chis revolving
credit agreement will be used, as needed, to repay short-
term and currenely macturing long-term deb, and to
finance other corporate requirements.

In addition to the above revolving credit agree-
ment, the Company had short-term lines of credic avail-
able aggregating $305.7 million at the end of 1996, of
which $73.7 million was utilized at variable interest
rates ranging from 4 to 14 percent.

During the fourth quarter of 1996, the Company
registered with che Securities and Exchange Commission
$150 million in principal amount of medium-term
notes. At year end 1996, no notes had been issued.
Proceeds from the medium-term notes will be used to
reduce debr and for other general corporate purposes.
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The Company's currently outstanding medium-cerm
notes have maturicies from 1997 through 2025 and have
a weighted-average interest rate of 7.2 percent.

The amount of long-term debe outstanding at che
end of 1996, which macures during 1997 through
2001, is $22.5 million, $6.2 million, $1 million, §2.1
million and $4.7 million, respectively.

The fair value of the Company's debe is estimated
based on the discounted amount of fucure cash flows
using the current races offered to the Company for debc
of the same remaining maturicies. Ac year end 1996
and 1993, the fair value of the Company’s toral debt
was $408.3 million and $456.1 million, respectively.

The terms of the various loan agreements in effect
at year end require maincenance of specified amounts of
consolidated tangible net worth and consolidated net
income before interest and taxes o consolidared interest.
Under the most restrictive provisions, $163.5 million of
retained earnings was not restricted at year end 1996,

The Company’s total interest expense in 1996,
1995 and 1994 was $40.9 million, $47.5 mitlion and
$45.7 million, respectively, of which $3.5 million, 3.2
million and $2.7 million, respectively, was capiralized
as parc of the cost of assees constructed for the
Company's use. Included in interest expense was $.4
million for 1996, $.3 million for 1995 and $5.6 mii-
lion for 1994 relating to the Company’s operations in
Brazil. The 1994 amount reflects extraordinarily high
nominal rates of interest resulting from hyperinflation-
ary conditions in that country, prior to July, 1994.

NOTE 4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to
reduce risk from exchange rate fluctuations associated
with receivables, payables, loans and commicmencs
denomirated in foreign currencies that arise primarily as
a resulr of irs operations outside the United States. At
the end of 1996 and 1995, the Company had forward
exchange contracts with a notional value of $166.7 mil-
Hon and $221.2 million, respectively, substantially all of
which were denominated in European currencies. In
general, the maturicies of the contraces coincide wich the
underlying exposure positions they are intended to
hedge. All contracts outstanding have macurities within
12 months. The carrying value approximates the fair
value, which, based on quoted market prices of compara-
ble instrumencs, was a ner liability of approximarely
$4.5 million and 8.2 million art the end of 1996 and
1995, respectively.
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The counterparties to forward exchange contraces
and interest rate agreements consist of a large number of
major international financial insticutions. The Company
centrally monitors its positions and the financial
strength of its counterparties. Therefore, while the
Company may be exposed to losses in the event of non-
performance by chese counterparties, it does not antici-
pate losses.

At the end of 1996, the Company had letrers of
credic outstanding rotaling $22.6 million which guar-
anteed various irade activities. The aggregare contract
amount of all outstanding lecters of credit approximates
fair value,

As of year end 1996 and 1995, approximately 26
percent and 20 percenc of trade accounts receivables,
respectively, were from 7 domestic custorners. While
the Company does not require its customers to provide
collateral, the financial posicion and operations of these
customers are monitored on an ongoing basis. Although
the Company may be exposed to losses in the event of
nonpayment, it does not anticipate such losses.

The Company has an agreement with a bank
whereby it has the right to sell certain accounts receiv-
able. The available commitment of this agreement ar the
end of 1996 was $70 miilion, subject co limited recourse
provisions. At the end of 1996 and 1995, no trade
receivables had been sold. Should the agreement be uti-
lized during 1997, che contract will be modified to com-
ply with the future requirements of SFAS No. 125,

NOTE 5. COMMITMENTS
Minimum annual rentals on operating eases for the
years 1997 to 2001 are $28.1 million, $24.6 million,
$20.8 million, $19.3 million and $18 million, respec-
tively. Operating leases relate primarily o office and i
warchouse space, EDP and transportation equipment.

The Company has an agreement to purchase cer-
tain informartion technology services through June 30,
2002; however, the agreement may be cerminarted at the
Company’s option on June 30, 2000. Totat commit-
ments remaining under the agreement approximated
$17.4 million as of December 28, 1996.

Rent expense for 1996, 1993 and 1994 was $39
million, 539.4 million and $39.7 million, respectively.
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The principal icems accounting for che difference
in taxes as computed at the U.S. staturory race and as
recorded were as follows:
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Consolidated income before taxes for U.S. and
inrernational operations was as foliows:
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32247 3170

L3, income waxes have aot been provided on
undistribured earnings of international subsidiaries
£5330.3 miilion ar year end 1996) because such earn-
ings are considered o be reinvesced indefinitely or
because U3, income raxes on dividends would be sub-
stantiaily oifser by foreign rax credics,

Operating loss carrytorwards for inrernationul
subsidiaries aguregating $48.6

muliion are available o
reduce income taxes .‘nuaolc of which 319.8 million
will expire over the period from 1997 chrough 2002,
winle 328.8 million can be carried forward indetinicely.
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The Company's Certificate of Incorporacion authorizes
tive million shares of $1 par value prefeered stock, with
respect o which the Board of Disectors may fix the
series and rerms of issuance, and 200 million shares of
31 par value voting common stock.

On October 24, 1996, the Company’s Board of
Direcrors auchorized a two-for-one stock split of the
Company’s common stock effected in the form of ¢ 1K)

percent stock dividend to shareholders of record as of .
December 6. 1996. Par value of $1 per share remabned

unchanged. An armounrt equal to the $1 par value of He
addirional common shares was cransfereed from capital
in excess of par value to common stock. Accordingly, sl
weighred-average share and per commaon share
amounts, as well as stock plan daca. have been restated
o retlect che stock split.

During 1988, the Company issucd preferred stock
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in the person’s owning 20 percent or more of the
Company's common stock. In the event the Company is
acquired in 2 merger, each right encitles che holder to
purchase common stock of the acquiring company hav-
ing a market value of twice the exercise price of the
right. If a person or group acquires 20 percent or more
of the Company’s common stock, each righe enticles the
holder to purchase the Company common stock with a
marker value equal to twice the exercise price of the
right. The rights may be redeemed by the Company at a
price of half a cent per right at any time prior to a per-
son’s or group’s acquizing 20 percent of the Company’s
common stock, The 20 percent threshold may be
reduced by the Company to as low as 10 percent at any
time prior 0 a person’s acquiring a percent of Company
stock equal to che lowered threshold.

The Board of Direcrors has authorized the reput-
chase of an aggregate 30.4 million shares of che
Company’s ourstanding common stock. The acquired
shares may be reissued under the Company'’s stock
option and incentive plans. At year end 1996, approxi-
mately 25.4 million shares had been repurchased pur-
suant te this auchorization.

The following table sets forth stock option informacion relative to all plans:

Stock Option and Incentive Plans

In October 1996, the Company established the Avery
Dennison Cosporatien Employee Stock Benefic Trust
(the *Trust”) to fund a portion of che Company's obliga-
tions arising from various employee beaefit plans. The
Company sold 18 million shares of creasury stock to the
Trusc in exchange for a promissory note of $564.8 mil-
lion char bears an interest rate of 8 percent per annum.
The Trust has a 135-year life during which it will utilize
the common stock to satisfy certain Company obliga-
tions. The common stock in the Trust is carried at mar-
ket value with changes in share price from prior report-
ing periods reflected as an adjustment to capital in
excess of par vaiue.

The Company maintains various stock oprion and
incentive plans which are fixed employee stock-based
compensation plans. Under the plans, incentive stock
options and stock options granted to directors may be
granted at not less than 100 percent of the fair marker
value of che Company's common stock on the darte of
the grant, whereas nonqualified options granted to
executives may be issued at prices no less than par
value. Options granted generally vest ratably over a
four year petiod. Unexercised options expire ten years
from the date of granc.

1996 1995 1994
Weighred-average Number of Number of Number of
{Opcions 1 thousands) exercise price Spticns options options
Quzstanding at beginning of year 315.03 10,224.6 9.650.2 8.796.7
Granted 34.67 1,623.0 1,792.1 2,783.0
Exercised 11,96 (1,778.9) {955.3) (1,565.1)
Forfeited or expired 18.23 (293.0) (262.4) (364.4)
QOuzstanding at end of year 18.76 9,775.7 10,224.6 9,650.2
Oprions exercisable ar year end 4.670.4 5.309.7 4,964.7

The following table summarizes information on fixed stock options outstanding at December 28, 1996 (oprions

in thousands):

Oprions putstanding Oprions exercisable

Werghted-
Number  average remaining  Weighted-average Number  Weigheed-average
Range of exercise prices - gursrnndiug _ contractual lite exercise price __c:_xcrc_israiblfﬁ B W’t:xerci_se__price
3 7.54 - 314.00 4,101.6 4.1 years $12.24 39725 $12.22
15.28 - 16.25 2,382.2 7.6 years 15.79 470.8 15.81
23.63 - 34.94 3,291.9 9.4 years 29.03 237.1 23.77
9.775.7 4,670.4
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Pursuanc o SFAS No. 123, no compensarion cost
was recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Income for the Company’s stock option and incentive
plans. Had compensartion cost for cthe Company's stock-
based compensation plans been recognized, the
Company’s pro forma net income and net income per
common share would have been $165.8 million and
$1.38, respectively for 1996 and $137 million and
$1.29 for 1993, respectively. Net income per fully-
diluted common share would have been §1.53 and
$1.25 for 1996 and 1995, respectively.

The weighred-average fair value of options grant-
ed during 1996 and 1995 were $9.51 and $5.87,
respectively. Option grant dace fair values were deter-
mined using a Black-Scholes option pricing value. The
underlying assumptions used were:

1996 1999
Risk-free interest rate 6.40% 6.75%
Expected stock price volarilicy 18.57 17.99
Expected dividend yield 2.09 2.67
Expecred oprion term 10 years 10 years

NOTE 8. CONTINGENCIES

The Company has been designated by the U.S,
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and/or other
responsible state agencies as a potentially responsible
party {PRP) ar 17 waste disposal or waste recycling
sites which are che subject of separate investigations or
proceedings concerning alleged soil and/or groundwacer
contamination and for which no settlement of the
Company’s liability has been agreed upon. Litigation
has been initiated by a governmental authority with
respect to four of these sites, buc the Company does not
believe that any such proceedings will result in the
imposition of monetary sanctions. The Company is par-
ticipating wich ocher PR Ps at all such sites, and antici-
pates chac its share of cleanup costs will be determined

pursuant to remedial agreements entered into in the
normal course of negotiations with the EPA or other
governmental authorities.

The Company has accrued liabilities for all sites,
including sites in which governmental agencies have
designated the Company as a PRP, where it is probable
that a loss will be incurred and the minimum cost or
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. However,
because of the uncertaincies associared with environmen-
tal assessment and remediation activities, fucure expense
to remediate the currently identified sires, and sites
which could be identified in the future for cleanup,
could be higher than che liability currently accrued.
Based on curren site assessments, management believes
the potential liability over the amounts currently
accrued would not macerially affect the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in
various other lawsuits, claims and inquiries, most of
which are routine to cthe nature of the business. In the
opinion of management, the reselution of these marters
will not materially affect the Company.

NOTE 9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
Defined Benefic Plans

The Company sponsors a number of defined benefic
plans covering substantially all U.S. employees,
employees in certain other countries and non-employee
direcrors. It is the Company’s policy ro make contribu-
tions to these plans sufficient to meet the minimum
funding requitements of applicable laws and regula-
tions, plus such additional amounts, if any, as the
Company’s actuarial consultants advise to be appropri-
ate. Plan assers are invested in a diversified porrfolio
that consists primarily of equity securities. Benefits
payable co employees are based primarily on years of
service and employees’ pay during their employment
with cthe Company. Cerrain benefits provided by the
Company’s U.S. defined benefic plan are paid, in part,
from an employee stock ownership plan.

The nec pension cost and the funded stacus of the defined benefit plans are summarized as follows:

NET PENSION (COST

(I mullions) 1996 1995 1994
Service cost $ 9.1 5 87 $ 93
Interest cost 27.0 26.4 24.5
Rerurn on plan assers (67.3) (69.9) (14.0)
Net amortization and deferral 28.8 34.6 (20.1)
Ner pension income 3 (2.9 S 2 3 D
Assumptions used:

Weighted-average discount rare 7.4 7.4% 8.0%

Weighted-uverage race of increase in future compensation levels 5.0 5.3 5.4

Weighted-average expected long-term rate of return on Jssets 9.7 9.7 2.7
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FUNDED STATUS OF PENSION PLANS
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Fully-funded plans Underfunded plans

{n millions) 199G 1995 1996 1995
Actuarial present value of:

Vested benefics $207.2 $196.0 $150.5 $132.3

Norn-vested benefits 4 .1 2 2
Accumulated benefit obligacion 207.6 196.1 150.7 132.5
Effece of projected future salary increases 27.8 29.2 15.0 14.9
Projected benefir obligation 235.4 2253 165.7 147.4
Plan asscts at fair value 339.2 304.6 132.3 109.3
Plan assers in excess of (less than) projected benefit obligation 103.8 79.3 (33.4) (38.1)
Unrecognized net (gain) loss (16.4) 7 16.5 19.3
Unrecognized prior service cost (13.6) {14.6) 7.7 8.0
Unrecognized net asset at year end (22.6) (24.8) (1.4) {(1.O)
Adjustment to recognize minimum liability — — (7.8) (10.8)
Prepaid {accrued) pension cost $ 312 $ 406 $(18.4) $(23.2)

As a resulr of changes in assumptions used during
1996 and 1995, an additional liability of $7.8 million
and $10.8 million, respectivety, is reflected in che
Company’s balance sheet. These amounts are offsert in
1996 and 1995 by a charge to equity of $.2 million and
$2.6 million, respectively, and the recording of an
intangible pension asset of $7.6 million and $8.2 mil-
lion, respectively. Consolidated pension expense for
1996, 1995 and 1994 was $1.5 million, $2 million and
$2.4 million, respectively.

Defined Contribution Plans
The Company sponsors various defined contribution
plans covering ics U.S. employees, including a 401(k)
savings plan. The Company matches participant contri-
butions to the 401(k} savings plan based on a formula
within the plan. The Avery Dennison Corporation
Employee Savings Plan (Savings Plan) has a leveraged
employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) feature which
allows che plan to borrow funds to purchase shares of
the Company's common stock at market prices. Savings
Plan expense cansists primarily of stock concributions
from the ESOP feature to participant accounts.

The Company also maintains another leveraged
ESOP for employees not covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. This ESOP alsc borrowed funds to purchase

shares of the Company’s common stock ac market prices.

ESOP expense is accounted for under three differ-
ert methodologies: the cost of shares allocated method,
the cash flow method 2nd the fair value method. The
following table sets forch certain information refating to
the Company’s ESOPs on a combined basis.

{In millions) 1996 1995 1994
Interest expense s2.7 33.4 323
Dividends on unallocated ESO¥P

shares used for debr service 1.7 1.9 2.3
Total ESOP expense 89 7.3 10.5
Contriburions to pay interest and

principal on ESOP borrowings 8.8 7.4 10.1

Censolidated expense for all defined contribution
plans, including toral ESOP expense, for 1996, 1995
and 1994 was $9.3 million, $8.2 million and $11.2
million, respectively. The ESOP shares for 1996 and
1995 were as follows:

(In millions} 1996 1995
Allocated shares 6.7 6.8
Unallocated shares 2.5 29
Toral ESOP shares held 9.2 9.7
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Ot the total ESOP shares held, shares accounced
for under che fair value method comprised of 167.800
allocated shares and 169,600 unallocated shares at vear
end 1996. Under che fair value method, unallocared
shares were valued ar 36.1 million at vear end 1996.

The Company provides postretirement healch benefics
to ics recired employees up to che age of 65 under a
cost-sharing arrangement, and supplemearal Medicare
benefies to cercain US. zetirees over the age of 65. The
Company's policy is o fund the cost of the postretire-
ment benefits on a cash basis. The tollowing table sers
forth the Company’s unfunded obligation and amount
recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:

tIn mullions) 1996 199%
Actuaril present value of benetic obligation:

Retirees 310.0 338

Fully eligible participants +.9 7.3

Orcher active participants 13.5 19.9
Accumulated postretirement benetic vbligation 28.4 335
Plan assecs —_ —
Accumulated poscretizement benefic

obligation in excess of plan assers 28.4 33.5

Enrecognized nec gain {loss) 3.0 (3.3
LUnrecognized prior service cost 3! (L3
Accrued postretirement benetic cbligacion 330.2 3289

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs included the
following compenencs:

+In miilions) 1996 19995 1994
Service cost 39 ! 31.2
Interest cost 1.8 2.2 2.1
Net amortization and defecral — 1 B
Net perfodic postretitement expense 2.7 354 33.4

A healch care cost trend rate of 11 percent was
assumed for 1996 and will decline 1 percent annually
to & percent by 2001 and remain at that level. The dis-
count rates assumed for 1996 and 1995 was 7.25 per-
cent. A | percent increase in the healch care cost trend
race would cause the accumulated postretirement bene-
fic obligation to increase by $3.7 million and service

and interest cost co increase by 3.4 miilion for 1996,

at Plans

Crefman Satimacn,

The Company has deferred COMpensation plang hich £
. .. Whi G
permic eligible emplovees and direcrors ¢ defer 4 : i3
s . .. Spe- kS
cific portion of cheir compensation, The Pe o

. . deterred Coimn.-
pensation, together with certain Company contriby

tions, earn a specitied rate of recurn, Ag of vear eng
1996 and 1995, the Company had aceryed $5-

. ; A .

lion and $48.2 miilion, respectively, for irs ablizations
- B =i

under these plans. The Company’s expense, which

includes Company concriburions and INECTest expense
was 36 million, $5.6 million and 54 million for {90y
1995 and 1994, respectively. A portion of the intcrcst'
may be forfeited by participants in the event employ-
ment is terminared before age 55 other than by reason
of deach. disability or reticement.

To assist in the funding of these plans, the
Company purchases corporaze-owned life insurance
contracts. Proceeds from the insurance policies are
payabie to the Company upon the deach of the partic-
pant. The cash surrender value of rhese policies, net of
ourstanding loans, included in "Other assers™ was
321.6 million and $16.4 million as of year end 1996
and 1993, respectively.

NOTIZ 10, 3EUTORS O
DPWEIATION S

Effective in the fourth quarter of 1996, che Company
realigned cthe reporting of its businesses from chree sce-
tors to two in an effort to berrer align its reporting
with manufacturing processes and end markets.
Accordingly, all prior year data has been reclassified ro
conform with the current realignment of the businesscs.

1

BUSINESS

The Company reports its operarions as the pro-
duction of pressure-sensitive adhesives and marterials
and the production of consumer and converred prod-
uces. Operations in che Pressure-sensitive adhesives
and marerials sector sell primarily to converters and
label princers, and includes the Fasson-brand papers.
films and foils, specialcy tape and specialty chemical
businesses. Operarions in the Consumer and converted
products sector sell primarily to che recail industry
and original equipment manufacrucers, and includes
the Avery-brand labels and other office products, cus-
tomer label converters, high-performance specialey
films and labels, merchanc diseribucors, automortive
and fastener businesses.
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During the third quarter of 1996, the Company
sold its equity interest in a label operation in Japan. A
$17.9 million gain was recorded in Corporate admin-
istrative and research and development expenses dur-
ing 1996. In addition, the Company recorded an
impairment for long-lived assets and rescructuring
actions, which combined, had an estimaced pretax cost
of $15.8 million.

During the fourth quarter of 1995, the
Company sold a portion of its Norch American label
converting operations. These businesses accounted for
approximately 4 percenc, or $63 million, of the 1995
Consumer and converted products’ sector sales. A
$40.7 miliion gain from rescructuring activities was
recorded in the Consumer and converted products sec-
tor’s income from operacions before incerest and taxes
during 1995. The businesses sold, excluding the gain
on sale and restructuring charges, accounted for $2.6
million of the Consumer and converred products sec-
toe's profitabiliey for 1993.

Intersector sales are recorded at or near market
prices and are eliminated in determining consolidared
sales. Income from operations represents total revenue
less operating expenses. General corporate expenses,
interest expense and taxes on income are exctuded from
the computation of income from operations. Beginning
in 1996, the Company adopted a revised allocation
methodology which more appropriately allocates corpo-
rate administrative expenses to each sector. The effect of
this revised methodology increased expenses allocated
to the two sectors by $7.8 million and $6.6 million for
1995 and 1994, respectively.
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Financial information by industry and geographic
secrors is set forch below:

(In raillions) 1996 1995 1994

Sales by industry secror:
Pressure-sensitive adhestves

and materials $1,693.5 $1,589.7 $1.389.7
Consumer and converted
produces 1,670.5 1,588.6 1,488.6
[ncersector (141.%) (128.1) (106.8)
Divesred operations — 63.7 85.2
Ner sales 33,2225 33,1139 $2,856.7
Income (loss) from operations
before interest and taxes:
Pressure-sensitive adhesives
and materials s 1577 $ 14438 $ 1388
Consumer and converted
products 159.0 147.8 102.1
Divested operations — 1 3.0
316.7 292.7 237.9
Corporate administrarive and
research and development
expenses 8.7) 23.7) (22.0)
Inzerest expense 37.4) (44.3) (43.0)
Income before taxes 3 2706 $ 2247 $ 1729
Identifiable assets by
industry sector:
Pressure-sensitive adhesives
and marerials $ 9704 $ 8863 3 789.8
Consumer and converted
products 883.0 857.3 796.9
Entersector (30.0) (26.6) (24.5)
Corporate and divested
operations 213.3 246.4 200.9
Toral assets $2,036.7 $1,963.6 $1,763.1

(1) Fiscal 1996 resules include a pretax gain of $17.9 million from the
sale of its equity interest in a label operation in Japan which was
included in Corporate’s administrative expense. Fiscal 1996 resulrs
also include precax restrucruring chazges of $15.8 million. The
restructuring charges were allocated as follows: $7.1 miltion to the
Pressure-sensitive adhesives and materials secror and $8.7 mallion o
the Consumer and converted products secror.

(2

—

Fiscal 1995 resules include a precax gain of $40.7 million from che
sale of a portion of its Norch American label converting operations
and was included in che Consumer and converted products 1995
operating results. Fiscal 1995 resulrs also include precax rescruceus-
ing charges of $39.2 million. The restructuring charges were allo-
cated as follows: $15.1 million to the Pressure-sensitive adhesives
2nd materials sector and $24.1 million to cthe Consumer and con-
verted products sector.

The 1996 and 1995 rescructuring charges, along with che gains
on divestiture, were reported in the “Net gain on divestitures and
restructuring chacges” line of the Consolidated Scatement of Income.

bt i
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ﬂrn rulliang) B 1996 1995 1994

RS TS

U.s. $2,056.1

51,9464 51.800.1
[nternacional 1,206.7 1,143.1 997.2
Intersector (40.3) (39.3) (25.8)
Divested operations e 63.7 35.2
Net sales §3,222.5 §3.113.9 32.856.7
B T N TS IR
‘-::"H‘;: STECTUST AN Les:
UGS $ 2323 $ 214.1 3 1827
Intecnarional 84.4 78.5 $8.2
Divested operarions — i (3.00
316.7 292.7 237.9
Corporare administrative and
research und development
expenses . {87 {23.7) (22.0}
Interest expense (37.4) 44.3) (43.0)

Income before taxes 270.6 S 2247 5 1729

A

It M leRers oy

Leographine seecor:

C.s. 31.051.9 $1,009.5 $ 906.1
[ncernacional 792.6 723.1 666.0
Intersecror (21.1) {15.4) (9.9}
Corporarte and divested

operacions 2133 246.4 200.9
Toral assers 52,036.7 $1,963.6 $1,763.1

(1) The 1996 rescructuring charges were allocated as follows: $13.8 mil-
lion <o the 1J.5. sector and 52 million to the Incernational sector.
[n addicion, che 1996 pretax gain of $17.9 million from the sale of
its equity interest in a label operation in Japan, was included in
Corporace’s administrative expense.

{2) The 19995 restruczuring charges were allocated as follows: $18.8 mil-
lion to che U.8. secror and $20.4 million co the International sector.
In addition, the 19935 pretax gain from the sale of its Nocth
American label converting operarions was allocated as follows: $38.4
million ro the U.S. seceor and $2.3 million to the Internationzl sector.

‘The Company’s international operations, con-
ducred primarily in continental Europe and the
United Kingdom, are on the FIFO basis of inventory
cost accounting. U.S. operations use both FIFQ and
LIFO. Export sales from the United States to unaffili-
ated customers are noc a material factor in the
Company's business.

Idencifiable assets are those assets of che Company
which are identifiable with che operations in each
industry or geographic sector. Corporate assets consist
principally of Corporate property, plant and equipment,
tax related asset accounts and other non-operating
assets. Inrersector receivables are eliminated in decer-
mining consoliduted idenrtifiable assecs.

Capiral expenditures and depreciation expense by
industry sector are set forth below: ’

(In millions) 1996 1995

(L

Lapviesi expenditiees:

Pressure-sensicive adhesives

und macerials 5100.8 31005 S04
Consumer and coaverted )
preducts 9.3 T 5
Corporate and divested
OpErarions 7.0 1t 13.9
$187.6 $190.3 $163.3
Depreciution sxpense:
Pressure-sensirive adhesives
and materials 349.4 3409 3367
Consumer and converted
products 41.2 42.5 9.4
Corporate and divested
operations 2.6 LLY 1.
5100.2 $95.5 3879
N TE O GUARTERLY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)Y
{In millions, except Firsc Second Third Fourrh
per common share daca) Quacter Quarrer Quarter” _guur[vr' R
]_996“).(3)
Ner sales 3796.6  5797.7 $819.3 8308
Gross profic 246.7 248.4 260.5 262.7
Net income 40.0 41.6 46.6 47.7
Net income per
common share .38 .39 45 46
1995(_‘)
Net sales 3775.2 37803 $7835 3767
Gross profic 244.8 239.0 235.0 238.5
Nec income 34.5 35.7 35.8 377
Ner income per
common share 32 34 34 .35
1994
Net sales 36677 STI8.6  §7337  $736.7
Gross profit 2125 2277 232.6 235.0
Nerz income 25.2 279 273 285
Net income per
common share 22 25 .25 .26

Per common share amounts for ail periods shown have been restated 0
weflect che December 1996 two-for-one common stock splic.

{1} Net income for the third quarter of 1996 includes income of
$1.4 million, or $.01 per common share, relared to the net gain on
divesticure and restruccuring chacges.

(2) Net income tor the fourth quarter of 19935 includes income of
31 million. or 3.01 per common share. related to the net gain on
divestitures and restruccuring charges.

(3} During the fourth quatter of 1996, cerrain inveatories were cedaced,
tesulting in che liquidacion of LIFQ inventory. The cffect was o
reduce cost of products sold by $1.7 mullion.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT
RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements and accompany-
ing information were prepared by and are the responsi-
bility of management. The statements weze prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples and, as such, include amouns that are based on
management’s besc estimates and judgments.

The incernal concrol systems are designed to
provide reliable financial information for the prepara-
rion of financial statements, to safeguard assets against
loss or unauchorized use and to ensure that transactions
are executed consistent with Company policies and
procedures. Management believes that existing internal
accounting control systems are achieving their objec-
tives and chat they provide reasonable assurance con-
cerning the accuracy of the financial statements.

Oversight of management’s financial reporting
and internal accounting concrol responsibilities is exer-
cised by the Board of Directors, through an audit com-
mitree which consists solely of outside directors (see
page 58). The Committee meets periodically wich
financial management, internal audicors and che inde-
pendent accountants co obtain reasonable assurance that
each is meeting its responsibilities and to discuss mat-
ters concerning auditing, internal accounting concrol
and financial reporting. The independent accounrants
and the Company’s internat audic department have free
access to meet wich the Audic Commiccee without
management's presence.

Rt Y0 il

Charles D. Miller
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

R. Gregory Jenkins
Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS OF AVERY DEXNNISON:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheet of Avery Dennison Corporation and sub-
sidiaries as of December 28, 1996 and December 30,
1995, and the relared consolidated stacements of
income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 28, 1996.
These financial statements are the responsibility of che
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require thac we plan and perform the audits to obrain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of marcerial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial scate-
menes. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimaces made by man-
agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion the financial statemenss referred
to above, which appear on pages 42 through 56 of this
Annual Report, present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Avery Dennison
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 28, 1996
and December 30, 1995, and the consolidated resulrs of
their operacions and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 28, 1994, in confor-
mity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.
Los Angeles, California
January 28, 1997
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Charles D. Miller ++~~
Chairman and

Chiet Execurive Otticer
Avery Dennison Corporation

Phitip M. Neal -~
President and

Chief Operating Otficer
Avery Dennison Corporation

Sidney R. Petersen™-**
Private investor and

retired Chairman and

Chief Executive Otficer
Gertey Oil Company,

an internacional pecroleurn
development and preduction
company

Frank V. Cahouer - »#
Chaicman. President and
Chiet Executive Officer
Melion Bank Corporation

Richard M. Ferry +5o"
Chairman and

Chief Execurive Officer
Korn/Ferry Internacional,
an internacional executive
search firm

John C. Argue'-*5~
Of Counsel and

former Senior Parcner of
Argue Pearson Harbison &
Myers, law tirm

- Member of Compensacion
and Execucive Personne!
Commitree

2 - Member of Audic
Committee

3 - Member of Finance
Commucree

- Member of Echies and
Coatlice of Incerese
Commicree

3 - Member of Nominacing
Commitee

6 - Member of Execurnive
Committee

7 - Member of Stracegic
Planning Commireee

Perer W. Mullin*~*~
Chairman and

Chiet Execurive Otficer

Mullin Consulting, Inc.,

an execurive compensacion, ben-
efit planning and corpocate
nsurance consulring firm

John B. Slaughter -~
President
Occiddental College

Dwight L. Allison, Jr. >
Privace investor and former
Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer of

The Boston Company

Joan T. Bok**!

Chairman of the Board

New England Electric System,
a public urility company and
supplier of elecericicy

CORPOIATE OFFICERS

Charles D. Miller
Chairman and
Chiet Executive Officer

Philip M. Nea!

President and
Chief Operating Officer

R. Gregosy Jenkins
Senior Vice President. Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

Alan J. Gotcher
Senior Vice Presidenc
Manufacruring and Technology

Robert G. van

Schoonenberg
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

Wayne H. Smith

Vice President and Treasurer

Thomas E. Miller

Vice President and Conrroller

Diane B. Dixon
Vice President

Corporate Communications

Susan B. Garelli
Vice President
Humun Resources

Paul B. Germeraad
Vice Presidenc and Direcror
Corporate Research

Daniel R. O’Bevane
Vice Presidenc ’
Operations Audic and
Business Consulting

Margarer S. Dang
Vice President
Manufactucing and Engineering

Johan 7. Goemans
Vice President

Management Informacion
Systems

James L. Fletcher
Vice President
Customer Service and Logistics

Gary A. McCue
Vice Presidenc
Strategic Value Development
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DIVISION OFFICERS

Materials -
Americas and Asia
Kim A. Caldwell*

Senior Group Vice President
Marerials - Americas and Asia

Flavio Lacerda*
Group Vice President
Latin America

Terence J. Jones
Vice Presidenc, General Manager
Fasson Roll Division (U.8.}

Robert H. Coleman
Vice President, General Manager
Fasson Films Division

Graham Lloyd
Vice President
Vencures and Specialry
Businesses

Mel S. Freedman
Vice Presidenc
Advanced Concepts and
Products

Dana G. Devereux

Vice President, General Manager
Merchane Division Norch
Arnerica

Jennings C. Lambeth
Vice President
Ventures and [nrernacional

Lawrence C. Mitchell
Vice President, General Manager
Release Coated Materials

James A. Shenker
Vice President
Procurement and
Maanufacturing Services

Worldwide Tape &
Converting and
Marterials - Europe
Geoffrey T. Martin*
Senior Group Vice President
Worldwide Tape and
Converting and Materials -
Lurope

Dean A. Scarborough
Vice President, General Manager
Fasson Roll Division (Europe}

Josef Kagon

Vice President, General Manager
Fasson Roll Division (Europe)
Central Region

Christian A. Simcic

Vice President, General Manager
Fasson Roll Division (Europe)
Southern Region

Svend L. Joergensen
Vice President
Converted Products Europe

Ronald H. Stone

Vice President

Global Business Development
Converced Products

Paul J. Caruso

Vice President, General Manager
Decorating Technologies
Division

David §. Logan
Vice President, General Manager
Fastener Worldwide

Mathew S. Mellis
Vice President, General Manager
Induscrial Products Division

Stmon D. Coulson

Vice President, General Manager
VIP Converted Produces

North America

Donald R. McKee*

Vice President
Label Ventures

Robere D. Smith
Vice Presidenc
Corporate Projects

James P. Schmirt
Vice President
International Manufacturing

Specialty Tape
Divisions
David W. Scheible

Vice President, General Manager
Specialty Tape Division (U.S.)

Jef Smets
Vice President, General Manager
Specialty Tape Division (Europe)

Worldwide Office
Produces

Stephanie A. Streecer®
Group Vice President
Worldwide Office Products

Stephen M. Sharp

Vice President, General Manager
Worldwide Office Automarion
Products

Jesse Beim
Senior Vice President
U. §. Office Products

Henry C. Reed

Vice President, General Manager
Organizacion, Filing and
Preseatation Products North
America

Chriscopher H. Binkley
Vice President

Sales znd Marketing

Office Products North America

Franklyn C. Hachaway
Vice President

Customer Operations

Office Products North America

Craig L. Donaldson
Vice Presidenc, General Manager
Markers and Adhesives

Brant 1. Kline

Vice President, General Manager
Indexes

David W. Freeman
Vice President, General Manager
Office Labels Notth America

Joseph A, Michael
Vice President
Operacions Planning
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J. Paul May

Vice President. General Manager
Oftice Preduces UK. and
European Business Development

Bernard Planche
Vice President, General Manager
Office Products France

Automortive and
Graphic Systems
James E. Shaw* 1
Group Vice President

Automotive and Graphic

Systems

Heinz Pichler

Vice President, General Manager
Marking Films Division
(Europe)

John J. Purcell
Vice President, General Manager
Automotive Division

Teddy P. Chung

Vice President, General Manager
Marking Films Division (U.S.)

Asia Pacific Group
Robert D. Elercher®

Group Vice President
Asia Pacific

John N. Anderson

Vice President, Fascener Asia

David L. Gurbach
Vice President, Operations
Asia Pacific

Chemical Division

H. Paul Barker

Vice President, General Manager
Chemical Divisions (UJ.8. and
Europe)

* Corporate Officer
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COUNSEL
Lacham & Watkins
Los Angeles

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.
Los Angeles

TRANSFER AGENT-REGISTRAR
First Chicago Trust Company of New York
P.O. Box 2500

Jersey Ciry, NJ 07303-2500

{800) 756-8200

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at

1:30 pm, Thursday, April 24, 1997, in the Conference
Center of the Avery Dennison Corporate Center,

150 North Orange Grove Boulevard, Pasadena, California.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN
Shareholders of record may reinvest their cash dividends
in additional shares of Avery Dennison common stock at
market price.

Shareholders can also invest optional cash payments of up
to $3,000 per month in Avery Dennison common stock at
market price.

Avery Dennison investors not yet participating in the
plan, as well as brokers and custodians who hold Avery
Dennison common stock for clients, may obtain a copy of
the plan by writing to First Chicago Trust Company of
New York, Attn. Avery Dennison Corporation Dividend
Reinvescmene Plan, P.O. Box 2598, Jersey City, NJ
07303-2598, (800) 756-8200.

FORM 10-K

A copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
will be furnished to shareholders and interested investors
free of charge upon written request to the Secretary of the
Corporarion.
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
150 North Orange Grove Boulevard
Pasadena, California 91103

(818) 304-2000

MAILING ADDRESS

P.O. Box 7090

Pasadena, California 91109-7090
Fax: (818) 792-7312

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Wayne H. Smich, Vice President and Treasurer
(818) 304-2000
investorcom@averydennison.com

WORLDWIDE WEB SITES

hrep://www.averydennison.com

heepi//www.avery.com (direct address for Avery-brand
office and consumer produccs)

hetpi//www.fasson.com (direct address for Fasson-brand
products)

STOCK AND DIVIDEND DATAY
Common shares of Avery Dennison are listed on the New
York and Pacific stock exchanges. Ticker symbol: AVY.

1996 1995
High Low High Low
Marker Price
First Quarter 282 25°s 20 16%s
Second Quarcer 29 27 217 1942
Third Quarcer 2734 25 21 19%
Fourth Quarrer 357 27 e 25Y%s 207

Prices shown represent closing prices on the NYSE,

1996 1993
Dividends Per Common Share
Firse Quarcer 13 135
Second Quarcer 15 133
Third Quarcer 15 135
Fourth Quarter 17 150

Number of shareholders of record as of year end 1996: 10,949

*"Market price and dividend per common share amounts were resrated to
reflece the December 1996 two-for-one commen stock split.

The following products mentioned in chis Annval Report are rrademarks of Avery
Dennison Corporation: Avery, Avcoat, Avery Computer Cencral, Avery Dennison,
BinderPack, Direct Print, Avery Kids, Avery Wizard, Avloy, ClearADvantage, Dry
Painz, DuaiSharp, EXACT, FasClear, Fasson, Mirage, NotePack, PencilPack, PRI-
MAX, SmartFolio, and SraySharp.

All ocher brands and product names are crademarks of their respective companies.




